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Important Communication to Members 
 

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated 
April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and SEBI Circular dated 12th May, 2020, Notice 
of the AGM inter-alia, indicating the process and manner of voting through electronic means along with the 
Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses 
are registered with the Company/Depositories and whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of 
Beneficial Owners as received from National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)/Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 
 
Your attention is invited to SEBI notification Number SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June 08, 2018 
regarding Compulsory Transfer of Securities in Dematerialized form w.e.f 05.12.2018 (subsequently 
extended up to 31.03.2019). Please read the said circular available 
on:https://www.sebi.gov.in/legal/regulations/jun-2018/securities-and-exchange-board-of-india-listing- 
obligations-and-disclosure-requirements-fourth-amendment-regulations-2018_39263.html 
 
Members who are holding shares in physical form are advised to submit particulars of their PAN details, e-
mail address, Mobile Number, bank account, viz. name and address of the branch of the bank, MICR code of 
the branch, type of account and account number etc. to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in prescribed 
Form ISR-1 quoting their folio number and enclosing the self-attested supporting document and other forms 
pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021. 
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their Respective DP only 
and not to the Company or RTA. 

 
 
 

  



 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 

 

Page | 2 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 
Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

 
Mrs. Puja Vashdev Bhagnani   Managing Director 
Mr. Vashu Lilaram Bhagnani   Non-Executive Director 
Mrs. Deepshikha Dhiraj Deshmukh  Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Habibulla Sayed    Independent Director 
Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel   Independent Director  
Mr. Omkar Pathak    Chief Financial Officer 
Mr. Sairam Ankush Majgaonkar   Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
      (with effect from 10.08.2022) 
 

COMMITTEES 

 

Audit Committee Nomination and Remuneration 
Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel 
Mr. Habibulla Sayed Mr. Habibulla Sayed 

Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 

  

Stakeholder Relationship Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
Mr. Habibulla Sayed 
Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 

Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel 
Mr. Habibulla Sayed 

Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
  

 

BANKERS 

 

IDBI Bank   Bank of Baroda    Saraswat Bank 
 
Plot No. 11, Nutan Laxmi Dr. Ambedkar Road,   Andheri, Gr. Flr.  
CHS Ltd., CTS No.-261,  Mumbai- 400050   Shivchhaya Co-Op HSG Soc 
JVPD Scheme, N.S. Road-      33, M.V. Road,   
10 J, Mumbai- 400049        Mumbai - 400069 

 

AUDITORS 

 

Statutory Auditor      Internal Auditor    Secretarial Auditor 
 
M/s Jayantilal Thakkar & Co. M/s. Manish R. Mehta & Associates    M/s B.K. Pradhan& Associates 
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants           Practising Company Secretary
  

 

 

REGISTERED OFFICE         REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS 
 
Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited  Bigshare Services Private Limited 
Pooja House, 1st Floor, CTS No.892-893,   1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, 
Opp. J.W. Marriott Hotel,    Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road 
Juhu Tara Road, Juhu, Mumbai-400 049  Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai- 400059 

Tel: 022-26121613/14 Fax: 022-26631275  Tel: 022-62638200 Fax: 022-62638299 
Email: investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in  Email Id: investor@bigshareonline.com 
Website: www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in  Website:www.bigshareonline.com 
CIN No.: L99999MH1986PLC040559 
 

 

EQUITY SHARES LISTING 

 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 

(BSE Limited) 

Security Code: 532011 
 

 

 

mailto:investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in
http://www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in/
http://www.bigshareonline.com/
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ABOUT THE COMPANY 

 
Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited are a leading Entertainment content house in India and an 
integrated player in the Media and Entertainment Industry. 

Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited has been pioneer in creating a global platform for Indian Cinema 
equipped with strong balance sheet, a large content library and a well-developed distribution. 

During the year, the Company has released 02 movies. 

List of movies released during the year 

FILM NAME STAR CAST/ 
(DIRECTOR) 

PRODUCTION/CO-
PRODUCTION/  
DISTRIBUTION 

GENRE RELEASE 
DATE 

Bell Bottom 

Starring by Akshay 
Kumar, Vaani Kapoor, 
Lara Dutta and Huma 
Qureshi 

Distribution & 
Production 

Action 
thriller 

19thAugust, 
2021 

Shava Ni 
GirdhariLal 
 

Strarring Gippy Grewal, 
Neeru Bajwa and 
Himanshi Khurana and 
Yami Gautam 

Distribution & 
Production 

Comedy 
17th 
December, 
2021 

At Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited, we take a balanced and educated view of success and firmly 

believe that every project depends on hard work and dedication of entire team members and with this 
team spirit we continue to move on, and we always look ahead-to tomorrow, to future. 
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NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited will be held on 
Wednesday, the 29th day of September, 2022 at 03.00 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), 

to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 
2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.  

2) To appoint Director in place of Mrs. Puja V. Bhagnani (DIN: 00044593), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 

herself for re-appointment. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30-08-2022 

Sairam A. Majgaonkar 

Company Secretary 
NOTES: 

1.In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 

April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, General 

Circular no. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General Circular no. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021, General Circular no. 21/2021 

dated December 14, 2021 followed by Circular No. 02/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 (collectively “MCA Circulars”) and Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, circular no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 followed by SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 

dated 13th May, 2022 (collectively “SEBI Circulars”), have permitted companies to conduct AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) 

or other audio-visual means (OAVM), subject to compliance of various conditions mentioned therein. The forthcoming AGM will 
thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio-visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can attend and participate in 

the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 

2.Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 
2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of 

remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered 

into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the 

date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 
3.The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of 

the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 

made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 

holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of 
the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are 

allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

4.The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under 

Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
5.Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members 

is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of 

the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC and cast 

their votes through e-voting. 
6.In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has 

been uploaded on the website of the Company at poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites 

of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com.  The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL 

(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e.,www.evotingindia.com. 

7.The AGM has been convened through VC in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA 
Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated 

May 05, 2020. 

8.In continuation of this Ministry’s General Circular No. 20/2020, dated 05th May, 2020, general circular No 02/2021 Dt. 13th Jan 

2021, General Circular No 19/2021 Dt. 8th Dec 2021 & 21/2021 dated 14th Dec 2021 and after due examination, it has been decided 
to allow companies whose AGMs were due to be held in the year 2022, or become due in the year 2022, to conduct their AGMs on 

or before 31.12.2022, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 

dated 05.05.2020. 

9.In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, Notice of the AGM inter-alia, indicating the process and 
manner of voting through electronic means along with the Annual Report 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to 

those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories and whose names appear in the Register of 

Members/list of Beneficial Owners as received from National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)/Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited (CDSL).  

10.The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out facts concerning the business of the 
Notice is annexed hereto, wherever required. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
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11.All documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection electronically and as such the Members are requested to 
send an email to investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in up to date of the AGM. 

12.The register of members and transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from <<September 23, 2022>> to 

<<September 29, 2022>> (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting. 

13.Any query relating to accounts or any other items of business set out in the agenda of the meeting must be sent to the 
Company’s email investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 

14.The Securities and Exchange Board of India has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 

participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their 

Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 

submit their PAN details to the Company’s Registrars & Transfer Agents, BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
15.Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of names are 

requested to send the share certificates to the Company’s Registrars & Transfer Agents, BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

for consolidation into a single folio. 

16.Members are requested to:  
-Intimate immediately any change in their address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are 

maintaining their demat accounts and holding shares in physical form are requested to advise any change of address immediately 

to the Company’s Registrars & Transfer Agents, BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 

-Communicate on all matters pertaining to their shareholdings with the Company or Registrars & Transfer Agents, BIGSHARE 
SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED quoting their respective Ledger Folio Numbers, Client ID and DP ID. 

17.To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in 

address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for 

long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified. 

SEBI has also mandated that for registration of transfer of securities, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall furnish a copy 
of their PAN card to the Company for registration of transfer of securities. 

18.Members who have not registered their contact no. and e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their contact no. and 

e-mail addresses, in respect of their electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants. 

Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to register their e-mail addresses with the Company’s Registrar & 
Transfer Agents, M/s BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED by sending an e-mail to investor@bigshareonline.com along with 

details like Name, Folio No., Scanned Certificate, ID Proof etc. 

19.Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 in respect of the directors seeking appointment/ reappointment at the AGM, is furnished as annexure to the 
Notice. The directors have furnished consent/declaration for their appointment/ reappointment as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules there under. 

20.The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Balkrishan Pradhan, Proprietor M/s. B. K. Pradhan & Associates, 

Company Secretaries, Mumbai as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the Remote e-Voting &e-Voting during the AGM in a fair and transparent 
manner and he has communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available for same purpose. 

21.Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the member / beneficial owner (in case 

of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off/record date. 

THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS UNDER: 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode.  
Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 

shareholders in demat mode. 

1.The voting period begins on <From 09.00 A.M. (IST) on September 26, 2022> and ends on <up to 05.00 P.M. (IST) on 

September 28, 2022>. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of <September 22, 2022>, may cast their vote electronically. The e-

voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

2.Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

3.Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to 

provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that 

the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. Currently, there are 

multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on 
various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. In order to increase the efficiency of the 

voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of 

a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders 

would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 

authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in demat mode. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 

Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 
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Type of shareholders Login Method 

 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with 
CDSL Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and 

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The 
URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 

the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e., 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 

directly. 
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and 
PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 

user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 
Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 
NSDL Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. 

Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-

Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 

e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 

e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat 

account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in demat 

mode) login through their 
Depository Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to 

see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 

site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository 

i.e., CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 

request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 
Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 

shareholders in demat mode. 

LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS FOR PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS AND 
SHAREHOLDERS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUAL HOLDING IN DEMAT FORM. 

1.The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

2.Click on “Shareholders” module. 

3.Now Enter your User ID  
a.For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b.For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

c.Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

4.Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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5.If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 
Company, then your existing password is to be used.  

6.If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository Participant are 

requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/ RTA or contact Company/ RTA. 

Dividend Bank 

Details OR Date 
of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 

account or in the company records in order to login. 
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / folio 

number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

7.After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

8. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders 

holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 

resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. 
9. For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 

Notice. 

10. Click on the EVSN for the relevant <POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED > on which you choose to vote. 

11. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the 
option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to 

the Resolution. 

12. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

13. After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

14. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

15. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 

16. If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on 

Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
17. There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 

verification. 

ADDITIONAL FACILITY FOR NON – INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS AND CUSTODIANS –FOR REMOTE VOTING ONLY. 

i.Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

ii. A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

iii. After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance 
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

iv. The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping. 

v. It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of 

the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

vi. Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. 
together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the 

Company at the email address viz; bkpradhan21@gmail.com and investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in, if they have voted from 

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC& E-VOTING DURING MEETING: 
i. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

ii. The link for VC to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after successful login as per 

the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 

iii. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be eligible 
to vote at the AGM. 

iv. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptop / iPad for better experience. 

v. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 

meeting. 
vi. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may 

experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN 

Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

vii. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker by 

sending their requestfrom their registered email address in advance atleast7 days prior to meeting (i.e.,22.09.2022) mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. The 

shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to 
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meeting (i.e.,22.09.2022) mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

viii. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 

during the meeting. 
ix. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions 

through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available 

during the AGM. 

x. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have not 
participated in the meeting through VC facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of 

e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES: 
i.For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 

certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 

email to the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents, M/s. BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED by sending an e-mail to 

investor@bigshareonline.com 

ii. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 
iii. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 

which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

18. If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email 

to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 
20. All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, 

(CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi 

Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS: 
a. Shareholders who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall 

not be entitled to cast their vote again at the meeting venue. 

b. A person whose name is recorded in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date 

(record date) of <September 22, 2022>, only shall be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting as well as voting in the 
meeting. 

c. Any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company after the dispatch of this Notice 

and holds shares as on the cut-off date i.e.,<September 22, 2022> should follow the instructions for E-voting as mentioned 

for FIRST TIME USER. In case of any queries, the shareholder may also contact the Registrar & Transfer Agent viz. M/s. 

BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 
d. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of the AGM, first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unlock the 

votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company. The 

Scrutinizer shall, within a period of not later than three (3) days from the conclusion of the AGM, prepare a consolidated 

Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, and submit it to the Chairman or any person 
authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the results of the voting. 

e. The Results so declared, along with the Scrutinizer’s Report, shall be placed on the Company’s website viz. 

investor@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in and on the website of CDSL. The results shall also be forwarded to Stock 

Exchanges. 
A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. 

 

Information pursuant to Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) and Regulation 36(3)  

of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
 

Brief Resume of Director 

 

 

Name of Director Mrs. Puja V. Bhagnani 

DIN 00044593 

Date of Birth 20.10.1962 

Date of Appointment  30.06.2008 

Educational Qualifications Master in Commerce Graduate 

Category of Director Managing Director 

Expertise in functional area Commerce 

Relationships between directors inter-se Wife of Mr. Vashu Lilaram Bhagnani (Director) 

List of other Listed Entities in which he holds 

Directorship and the membership of Committees of 

the board. 

NIL 

Other Committee Membership NIL 

No. of Shares held 21,94,370 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Dear Shareowners,  

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Thirty Fifth Annual Report along with the Audited Accounts and Financial 
Statements (including consolidated financial statements) for the year ended on 31st March, 2022. 

 

Financial Results (Standalone & Consolidated): 

         (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 

Total Revenue 948.19 80.59 2459.47 299.88 

Total Expenses 918.59 81.19 2169.29 234.05 

Profit before exceptional items & tax 29.60 (0.60) 290.18 65.83 

Exceptional items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Profit before Tax 29.60 (0.60) 290.18 65.83 

Tax Expenses (10.41) (3.76) (10.41) (3.76) 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 0.00 0.00 12.10 (5.71) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 19.20 (4.36) 291.87 56.36 

 

Operational Performance: 

During the financial year 2021-22, total revenue on standalone and consolidated increased to Rs.`948.19  Lakhs   and   Rs.`2459.47   
Lakhs as  against Rs.`80.59 and Rs.`299.88 respectively in the previous year; Profit before Tax for the current year is standalone 

Rs.29.60 Lakhs and consolidated Rs.`290.18 Lakhs as against standalone Rs.`(0.60) Lakhs and consolidated Rs.`65.83 Lakhs in the 

previous year and the total comprehensive income for the current year stood at standalone Rs.`19.20 Lakhs and consolidated 

Rs.`291.87 Lakhs as against standalone Rs.`(4.36) Lakhs and consolidated Rs.`56.36 Lakhs in the previous year. 
Segment Performance: 

The Company is engaged in the business of entertainment and films either through co-production and production of such films and 

subsequently exploiting and distributing such films in India through music release, theatrical distribution, DVD and VCD release, 

television licensing and other new media distribution avenues.  
Changes in the nature of business, if any: 

There were no Changes as such in the Company for the year under review. 

Reserves: 

During the year under review, no amount was transferred to Reserves. 
Dividend: 

Considering the prevailing economic conditions and the requirement of cash the Board of Directors does not recommended any 

dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 

Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Companies: 

Modern Production FZ LLC is 100% Subsidiary of the Company. Kindly refer Form AOC-1 which is enclosed as Annexure-I and 
forms part of this report.  

Share Capital & Listing: 

The paid-up equity capital as on March 31, 2022 was `5,00,05,000/-. As on date all the 50,00,500 Equity Shares of the Company 

are listed on the BSE Limited. The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing fees for the year to the BSE where the 
Company’s shares are listed. 

Annual Return 

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act the Company shall place Annual Return as at March 31, 

2022upon filing on the website of the Company at https://poojaentertainmentandfilms.in/. By virtue of amendment to Section 
92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to provide extract of Annual Return (Form MGT-9) as part of the 

Board’s report. 

Revision in Financial Statements: 

In terms of section 131 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Financial Statements and Board’s Report are in compliance with the 

provisions of section 129 or section 134 of the act and that no revision has been made during any of the three preceding Financial 
Years. 

Deposits:   

The Company has neither accepted nor invited any deposit from the public and hence directives issued by Reserve Bank of India 

and the provisions of Chapter V (Acceptance of deposits by Companies) of    the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under 
are not applicable for the year. However, company is having unsecured loan of `866.72 Lakhs as on 31stMarch, 2022 from Directors 

of the company for which proper declaration has been furnished by them as required under Rule 2(viii) of the Companies 

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the period under review. 

Material changes and commitments: 
There were no Material changes affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the 

financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report. 

COVID-19: 

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of 
economic activity. In many countries, businesses are being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite periods of 

time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and closures of non-
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essential services have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. The health 
and safety of all employees has always been the top priority. In line with the guidelines issued by the Government, the Company 

implemented key measures across every touch point to safeguard its Human Capital. All the necessary safety and hygiene protocols 

were followed for the critical verticals functioning from office, including alternate seating arrangements, implementing a clean 

desk policy and temperature screening at all entry points. Frequent sanitization of all surfaces was maintained, and hand sanitizers 
were placed at all strategic locations within the office premises. 

Disclosure of Significant Orders Passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunal: 

No significant and material orders passed which impact on the going concern and the operations in future. 

Directors Responsibility Statement: 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm that: 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;  

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the profit of the Company for the same period;  

c) proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities;  
d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;  

e) they have laid down internal financial controls in the Company that are adequate and were operating effectively and 

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and these are adequate 

and are operating effectively. 
Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association, Mrs. Puja V. Bhagnani, Director 

retiring by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment. Mr. Murli M. Thanvi, 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer resigned w.e.f. 10.08.2022. Mr. Sairam A. Majgaonkar appointed as Company Secretary 

and Compliance officer of the Company w.e.f 10.08.2022. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, brief resume, expertise and other details of Director proposed 

to be appointed/re-appointed are attached along with the Notice to the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

Disclosure of Declaration for Disqualifications by Directors: 

As per the declaration received in Form ‘DIR-8’ pursuant to section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(1) of Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014; none of the Directors of the Company is disqualified from being 

appointed as Directors. 

Disclosure of Declaration for Independence by Independent Directors: 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet the criteria 
of independence under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Familiarization Program for Independent Directors: 

The Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents/ brochures, reports and internal policies, Quarterly updates on 
relevant statutory, regulatory changes, visits to the site of the company are organised for the Independent Directors. Detailed 

information on the Company’s business is made at the meetings of the Independent Directors from time to time. The details of such 

programs for Independent Directors are posted on the website of the company and can be accessed at 

https://poojaentertainmentandfilms.in/. 

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors: 
As mandated by Clause VII of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on 

14.02.2022. The Independent Directors in the said meeting has reviewed the performance of Non-Independent directors and Board 

as a whole including the performance of the Chairperson of the company after accounting the views of executive directors and non-

executive directors and also assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the management of the 
listed entity and the board of directors that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their 

duties. 

Report on Corporate Governance: 

As stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate report on Corporate 
Governance forms part of this report is enclosed as Annexure-II. A certificate from the Auditors confirming compliance with the 

conditions of Corporate Governance is enclosed as Annexure-III and forms part of this report. 

Performance Evaluation &Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 

Pursuant to section 134(3)(p) of Companies Act 2013 and rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and clause 17(10) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an evaluation of its own 
performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of its Committees as per the criteria laid down in the Nomination, 

Remuneration and Evaluation policy. The said policy including above said criteria and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of 

the Act is provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report also the policy is available on the Company’s 

websitei.e.www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 

Policies: 

We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in all our business transactions guided by our value system. 

The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013 has mandated the 
formulation of certain policies for all listed companies. All our corporate governance polices are available on our website 
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(www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in). The policies are reviewed periodically by the board and updated on need and new 
compliance requirement. 

Board Meeting 

Number of Meetings of the Board: 

During the year under review Board meeting were held on 28/06/2021, 14/08/2021, 03/09/2021, 14/11/2021, 14/02/2022, 
01/03/2022 and 21/03/2022. Details of the Board of Directors and Attendance is as under: 

Audit Committee:  

The Audit Committee reviews the audit reports submitted by the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditor, financial results, 

effectiveness of internal audit processes and the Company’s risk management strategy. It reviews the Company’s established 

systems and the Committee is governed by a Charter which is in line with the regulatory requirements mandated by the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 read with part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Committee met during the financial year on 28/06/2021, 14/08/2021, 14/11/2021 & 

14/02/2022. 

Composition, Name of Members and Attendance during the year is as follows: 

Name of the Member Nature of Membership No. of Meetings Attended/eligible to attend 

Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Chairman 4/4 

Mr. Habibulla Sayed Member 4/4 

Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh Member 4/4 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

This Committee shall identify the persons, who are qualified to become Directors of the Company / who may be appointed in 
Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for 

the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

The Remuneration policy as adopted by the Company envisages payment of remuneration according to qualification, experience 

and performance at different levels of the organization. The employees in the Company including those rendering clerical, 
administrative and professional service are suitably remunerated according to Industry norms. 

During the year under review, Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 2 (Two) Committee Meetings in a year on 

28/06/2021 and 14/08/2021. 

Composition, Name of Members and Attendance during the year is as follows: 

Name of the Member Nature of Membership No. of Meetings Attended/eligible to attend 

Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Chairman 2/2 

Mr. Habibulla Sayed Member 2/2 

Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh Member 2/2 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is constituted in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable 

rules thereto and as per Regulation20 of SEBI Listing Regulations. The Committee met during the financial year on 03/09/2021 & 
14/11/2021. Composition, Name of Members and Attendance during the year is as follows: 

Name of the Member Nature of Membership No. of Meetings Attended/eligible to attend 

Mr. Habibulla Sayed Chairman 2/2 

Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Member 2/2 

Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh Member 2/2 

Auditors: 
Statutory Auditors- 

M/s Jayantilal Thakkar & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm’s Registration No. 104133W) were re-appointed as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company in the 32ndAGM held on 30thSeptember, 2019, for a second term of five consecutive years. The observation 

made in the Auditors' Report read together with relevant notes thereon are self-explanatory and hence, do not call for any further 
comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further no fraud has been reported by the auditors under sub section 

(12) of section 143 of the Companies act, 2013. 

Secretarial Auditor: 

The Secretarial Audit Report in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed as Annexure-
IV and forms part of this report. The Board’s comments for the observation: The one (1) delay in filing of Quarterly Report on 

Name & DIN of Director Position No. of meeting held 
No. of meeting 

attended 

Last AGM 

attended 

Mrs. Puja V. Bhagnani (DIN: 

00044593) 

Managing 

Director 
7 7 No 

Mr. Vashu L. Bhagnani 
(DIN: 00043481) 

Non-executive 
Director 

7 7 Yes 

Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 

(DIN: 02146210) 

Non-executive 

Director 
7 7 Yes 

Mr. Habibulla Sayed (DIN: 

06535028) 

Independent 

Director 
7 7 Yes 

Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel 

(DIN: 08467505) 

Independent 

Director 
7 7 Yes 
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investor complaints was due to due to covid-19 Lockdown and was unintentional and the Board hereby assure to have more 
stringent check on such events in future. 

Cost Records: 

Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government in terms of provisions of section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments u/s 186: 

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

details of the investments held by company are given in the notes to the financial statements. 

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties u/s 188: 
During the year, the Company did not enter into any contract/arrangement/transaction with a related party which can be 

considered as material. The related parties’ transactions undertaken during the financial year 2021-22 are on arm’s length basis 

and detailed in the Notes to Accounts of the Financial Statements. The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy to regulate transactions between the Company and its Related Parties, 

in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules there under and the Listing Regulations. This 
Policy was considered and approved by the Board has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in.  

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

As the Company is not a manufacturing Company, the Board of Directors has nothing to report on conservation of Energy and 
Technology absorption, Information required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(a) Conservation of energy 

1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – N.A. 
2. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – N.A. 

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s – N.A. 

(b) Technology absorption 

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption – N.A. 

2. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution – N.A. 
3. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)- 

a. The details of technology imported – N.A. 

b. The year of import; – N.A. 

c. Whether the technology been fully absorbed – N.A. 
d. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and reasons thereof – N.A. 

e. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development – N.A. 

(c) During the year under review, the Company did not have earning and outgo of any foreign currency. 

Business Risk Management: 
The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company and the Board of Directors of the Company state that risk 

associated in the ordinary course of business is duly taken care by the board while taking business decisions. However, the 

constitution of Risk Management Committee is not applicable to the company, but company has framed the policy for Risk 

Management and uploaded the same on website of the company, at www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): 

The report is annexed as Annexure-V. 

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy: 

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management Discussion and Analysis 

which forms part of this report. 
Vigil Mechanism: 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, a Vigil Mechanism for 

directors and employees to report genuine concerns has been established. The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the 

website of the Company at www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 
Commission Received by Directors from Holding and Subsidiary: 

During the year under review neither the Managing Director nor Whole-time Director is in receipt of commission from the 

Company and also has not received any remuneration or commission from any holding or subsidiary company of Company u/s 

197(14). 
Managerial Remuneration: 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, in respect of employees of the Company 

and Directors is furnished hereunder: 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial 
year and;  

Name of Director Ratio to median Remuneration 

Puja Bhagnani (MD) 1.10 

Other than above none of the directors were paid any remuneration during the year. 
2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary 

or Manager, if any, in the financial year; NO INCREASE 

The company is having profit during the current financial year i.e., 2021-22. The remuneration of the KMP's are duly reviewed on 

annual basis keeping in mind the tenure, the past performance and current performance. 
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3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year was; NO INCREASE 
4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31.03.2022 was 4; 

5. Average Percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 

year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof; 

Remuneration paid to employees excluding managerial personnel for the 2020-21 Rs.90800 

Remuneration paid to employees excluding managerial personnel for the 2021-22 Rs.180000 

% Change in remuneration paid to employees excluding managerial personnel 98.23 

Remuneration paid to managerial personnel for the FY 2020-21 Rs.2243310 
Remuneration paid to managerial personnel for the FY 2021-22 Rs.2424000 

% Change in remuneration paid to managerial personnel 08.05 

Further there are no exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration.  

6. During the year no variable component of remuneration availed by Directors of the Company; 

7. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors, KMP’s and Employees during the year under 

review is as per the Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the company. 
8. None of the employee has received remuneration of Rs. Eight Lakhs and Fifty Thousand per month or Rs. One Crores Two 

Lakhs per year or at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director 

or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity 

shares of the company. 
Equity Shares with Differential Voting Rights: 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights and accordingly the provisions of Section 43 read with 

Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under 

are not applicable for the year. 

Details of Sweat Equity Shares: 
The company has not issued any sweat equity shares and accordingly the provisions of Section 54 read with Rule 8(13) of the 

Companies (Share Capital and debentures) Rules, 2014of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under are not 

applicable for the year. 

Disclosure on Confirmation with Secretarial Standards: 
The Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India to be complied 

pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, have been duly complied with. 

Details of Employees Stock Option Scheme: 

The company has not granted stock options and accordingly the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) read with Rule 12(9) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under are not 

applicable for the year. 

Disclosure of Voting Rights Not Exercised: 

The company has not made any provision of money for the purchase of, or subscription for, shares in the company or its holding 
company, if the purchase of, or the subscription for, the shares by trustees is for the shares to be held by or for the benefit of the 

employees of the company and accordingly the provisions of Chapter IV (Share Capital and Debentures) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and rules framed there under are not applicable for the year. 

Depository: 

Equity shares of the Company are traded in Demat form as well as in physical form. For dematerialization of shares, the Company 
has connectivity with the National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). Annual 

Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2021-22 has been paid by the Company to NSDL and CDSL. 

Management Discussion and Analysis: 

The Management Discussion and Analysis report has been separately furnished in the Annual Report and forms a part of the 
Annual Report. 

Cash Flow Statement: 

In conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, the cash flow statement for the year ended 31stMarch, 2022 is 
annexed hereto. 

Number of Meetings of the Board and its Committees: 

The details of the meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committees, convened during the financial year 2021-22 are provided 

in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Report 
Obligation of Company under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013: 

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 the company has set up Internal Complaints Committee(s) to look into 

complaints relating to sexual harassment at work place of any women employee. Company has adopted a policy for prevention of 
Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace and has set up Committee for implementation of said policy.  

During the year under review the Company has neither received any complaint of harassment nor any complaints pending there 

under. 

Code of Practices and Procedure for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information under SEBI (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015: 

Pursuant to Regulation 8 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 the Board 

of Directors has formulated and adopted the "Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive 

Information" (Code of Fair Disclosure) of the Company. 
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited 

 
 

 

Puja V. Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 

Managing Director Director 

DIN: 00044593  DIN: 02146210 
Place: London  DIN: Mumbai 

Date: 30-08-2022 Date: 30-08-2022 
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Annexure-I 

Form AOC-I 

 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or joint ventures 

 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs) 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

 

1. S. No. (i) 

2. Name of the subsidiary Modern Production FZ LLC 

3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 15/06/2018 

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 
from the holding company’s reporting period 

NA 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of 

the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. 

INR 20.55/AED 

6. Share capital 6,85,000 

7. Reserves & surplus 18,65,840 

8. Total assets 96,59,433 

9. Total Liabilities 96,59,433 

10. Investments - 

11. Turnover 74,62,225 

12. Profit before taxation 12,87,611 

13. Provision for taxation - 

14. Profit after taxation 12,87,611 

15. Proposed Dividend - 

16. Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100% 

 

1 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: - 

2 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: - 

     

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures: NIL 

 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited 

 
 

 

Puja V. Bhagnani  Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 

Managing Director  Director 
DIN: 00044593  DIN: 02146210 

Place: London  DIN: Mumbai 

Date: 30-08-2022  Date: 30-08-2022 
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Annexure-II 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
Corporate Philosophy: Company continues to uphold its commitment to adhere to high standards of Corporate Governance. 

The Company strives to ensure transparency in all its operations, make disclosures and comply with various laws and 

regulations. Emphasis therefore, is on adding value to its shareholders, investors, employees, suppliers, customers and the 

community. Your Company is in full compliance with the norms and disclosures that have to be made from time to time with 

the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 [SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015] as amended. 

We strongly believe in the practice of conducting our business activities in a fair, direct and completely transparent manner 

that will not only benefit the Company but more importantly will ensure the highest level of accountability and trust for all our 

stakeholders such as shareholders, employees and partners. We, a continuously strive at improving and adhering to the good 
governance practice. The Company has adopted best practices as mandated in SEBI Listing Regulations. 

1. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 Composition and size of the Board: 

The Board has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors. As on 31st March, 2022, the Board 

comprised of 5 (Five) directors, out of which 1 (One) is Executive Director, 2 (Two) are Non- Executive Non- Independent 

Directors (including one woman director) and 2 (Two) are Non- Executive Independent Directors. The Company has had no 

pecuniary relations & transactions with the Non-Executive Directors/independent directors other than payment of sitting fees 

and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for attending meetings of the Board/Committees of the Company. 

Board Meetings: 

During the year under review, 7 (Seven) Meetings of the Board were held on 28/06/2021, 14/08/2021, 03/09/2021, 

14/11/2021, 14/02/2022, 01/03/2022 and 21/03/2022.The Board was presented with relevant, statutory and necessary 

information at these meetings. 

The composition of Board of Directors and changes amongst them during the year under review, attendance of each Director at 

the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting, number of directorships and committees’ membership(s) / 
chairmanship(s) of each Director as on March 31, 2022 is tabulated hereunder: 

Name & DIN of the 
Director 

Category 

No. of Board 
Meetings attended 
/held during their 

tenure 

At last AGM 
held on 

September 28, 
2021 

No. of positions held in listed and unlisted public 
limited companies (including the Company) 

Directorships 
As member of 

Committee 
As Chairman 

#Mr. Vashu L. Bhagnani P.NED 7/7 Yes 3 0 0 

#Mrs.  Puja V. Bhagnani P.MD 7/7 No 2 0 0 

#Mrs. Deepshikha D. 
Deshmukh 

P.NED 7/7 Yes 1 4 0 

Mr. Narendrakumar B. 
Patel  

I.NED 7/7 Yes 1 4 3 

Mr. Habibulla Syed  I.NED 7/7 Yes 1 4 1 

Legend: P: Promoter; MD: Chairman & Managing Director; I: Independent; NED: Non-Executive Director; 

# Vashu L. Bhagnani and Puja V. Bhagnani are related as Spouse & Deepshikha D. Deshmukh is a daughter of Vashu L. 

Bhagnani and Puja V. Bhagnani. (Except these, no director is related to any other directors and KMPs on the Board). 
None of the directors is a member of more than ten committees or acting as Chairman of more than five committees across all 

public companies in which he/she is a director as per Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR 2015. 

As per declarations received, none of the directors serves as an independent director in more than seven listed companies. 

Further, none of the whole- time directors in the Company serve as an independent director in more than three listed 
companies. Brief profile of each of the directors of the Company is available on the Company’s website: 

www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 

For the purpose of considering the number of directorships, limit of the committees on which a director can serve, all public 

limited companies, whether listed or not have been included, and all other companies including private companies, foreign 

companies and companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been excluded. Only Audit Committee and 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are considered for the purpose of reckoning committee positions. 
None of the directors holds office as director, including alternate director, in more than twenty companies at the same time. 

None of them has directorship in more than ten public companies. For reckoning the limits of public companies, directorship of 

private companies that are either holding or subsidiary of public companies are included and directorship in dormant 

companies are excluded. 
Directorship in other listed companies (excluding Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited) as on March 31, 2022, 

None of the directors holds office as director, in any other listed company as on 31st March, 2022. 

 Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors: 

The List of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of the Company’s 

business are as follows: - 

(i)Knowledge on Company’s businesses (Production, Media and Entertainment), policies and culture (including the Mission, 

Vision and Values) major risks/threats and potential opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company 
operates. 

i) Behavioural skills-attributes and competencies to use their knowledge 

http://www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in/
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ii) Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex Management, administration, decision making. 
iii) Financial and Management skills, knowledge of law, Insurance, Project Management, human resource management, CSR 

etc. 

iv) Technical/Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s business. 

Name of the Director Skill 

(1) 

Skill 

(2) 

Skill 

(3) 

Skill 

(4) 
Mr. Vashu L. Bhagnani ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  
Mrs.  Puja V. Bhagnani ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  
Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  
Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  
Mr. Habibulla Syed ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  

Confirmation regarding Independent Directors: 

Based on annual declaration of independence received from Independent Directors, all the independent directors of the 

Company meet the conditions specified in SEBI Listing Regulations 2015 and are independent of the management. 

None of the Independent Directors of the Company resigned before the expiry of their respective tenure during FY 2021-22. 
Information supplied to the Board: 

In advance of each meeting, the Board is presented with relevant information on various matters related to the working of the 

Company, especially those that require deliberation at the highest level. Presentations are also made to the Board by different 

functional heads on important matters from time to time. Directors have separate and independent access to officers of the 
Company. In addition to items which are required to be placed before the Board for its noting and/or approval, information is 

provided on various significant items. 

The information supplied by management to the Board of the Company is in accordance with SEBI LODR, 2015 and Companies 

Act, 2013. 
 Orderly succession to the Board and Senior Management: 

The Board of the Company satisfied itself that plans are in place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and 

Senior Management. 

 Review of legal compliance reports: 

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed compliance reports with respect to the various laws applicable to the 
Company, as prepared and placed before it by the Management. 

 Maximum tenure of independent directors: 

The maximum tenure of independent directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI LODR, 

2015. 
 Formal letter of appointment to independent directors: 

The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to independent directors in the manner as provided in the Companies Act, 

2013. The Standard appointment letter containing the terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors are placed 

on the Company’s website www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 

 Appointment/Re-appointment of Directors: 

Mrs. Puja V. Bhagnani is being liable to retire by rotation, shall retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being 

eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

Brief profile and other particulars of aforesaid Directors pursuant to regulation 36(3) of the SEBI LODR, 2015 are annexed to 
the Notice convening AGM, which forms part of the Annual Report. 

 Familiarization Programme: 

The Company familiarizes not only the Independent Directors but every new appointee on the Board, with a brief background 

of the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, 

operations of the Company, etc. They are also informed of the important policies of the Company, including the Code of 

Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel and the Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report 
Trading in securities by Insiders, etc. The particulars of familiarization programme for Independent Directors can be accessed 

through the weblink: http:www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 

2. AUDITCOMMITTEE: 

As on March 31, 2022, Audit Committee of the Company comprised of Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel (Chairman), Mr. Habibulla 

Sayed and Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh has members of the Committee. The Committee comprised of two independent 
directors (including Chairman) and one Non- Executive director. 

During the year under review, 4 (four) meetings of the Committee were held on June 28, 2021; August 14, 2021; November 14; 

2021 and February 14, 2022. The attendance of members at the meetings of Committee held during the year is as follows: 

S r. No. Name of the Member Nature of Membership No. of Meetings Attended/eligible to attend 

1 Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Chairman 4/4 

2 Mr. Habibulla Sayed Member 4/4 

3 Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh Member 4/4 

During the year, there are no changes occurred in the composition of the audit committee. 

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board of Directors during the year. The erstwhile 

Chairman of the Audit Committee Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel was present at the last AGM held on 31st December, 2020. 

In addition to Statutory Auditors, Chairman, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, who being permanent invitees attend 

Audit Committee Meetings. 
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Terms of Reference: 
The terms of reference of Audit Committee were reviewed by the Board of Directors periodically in accordance with the SEBI 

Listing Regulations read with Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules thereto. 

The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee along with working procedure, charter and constitution are uploaded on 

website of the Company at www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 
1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 

financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
4. Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the 

board for approval, with particular reference to: 

a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in 

terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g) Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval; 

7. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / 

prospectus / notice and the reportsubmittedbythemonitoringagencymonitoringtheutilisationofproceedsof a public or rights 

issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

8. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 

9. Approvaloranysubsequentmodificationoftransactionsofthecompanywithrelatedparties; 
10. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

11. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

12. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

13. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems; 

14. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 

and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

15. Discussionwithinternalauditorsofanysignificantfindingsandfollowupthereon; 
16. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud 

or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

17. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
18. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case 

of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

19. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

20. Approval of appointment of CFO after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

21. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee. 
22. The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:  

a) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;  

b) statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by management;  

c) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
d) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and  

e) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit 

committee. 

3. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 
As on March 31, 2022, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) comprised of Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel 

(Chairman), Mr. Habibulla Sayed and Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh are as members of the Committee. The Committee 

comprised of two independent directors (including Chairman) and one Non- Executive director.  

During the year, 2 (Two) meeting of the Committee were held on 28/06/2021 and 14/08/2021. The attendance details of the 

committee are as follows: 

Sr. No. Name of the Member Nature of Membership No. of Meetings Attended/eligible to 

attend 

1 Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Chairman 2/2 

2 Mr. Habibulla Sayed Member 2/2 

3 Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh Member 2/2 

During the year, there are no changes occurred in the composition of the Nomination committee. 

Terms of Reference: 
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The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) were reviewed by the Board of Directors of the 
Company periodically, pursuant to the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules thereto. 

The revised terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee along with working procedure, charter and 

constitution are separately annexed with report as Annexure-VI and also uploaded on website of the Company 

www.pooojaentertainmentandfilms.in. 

Managing Directors& Key Managerial Personnel Employees- 

The objective of the policy is directed towards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and retain 

talent. The Remuneration to Managing Directors shall take into account the Company’s overall performance, MDs contribution 

for the same & trends in the industry in general, in a manner which will ensure and support a high-performance culture. 

The Company has no stock option plans and hence such instruments do not form part of their remuneration package. 

The Remuneration to others will be such as to ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets 

appropriate performance benchmarks. 

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management will have a balance between fixed and incentive 

pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

The details of remuneration of Puja V. Bhagnani - Managing Director, and Omkar Pathak - CFO for FY: 2021-22 is as follows: 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Remuneration Package Puja V. Bhagnani Omkar Pathak 

Salary and allowances 7.2 11.64 

Leave Encashment 0 0 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other 
funds 

0 0 

Perquisites 0 0 

Total (Rs. in Lakhs) 7.2 11.64 

The Company entered an agreement with the Managing Director, for a period of 5 years w.e.f. April 23, 2018; which can be 

terminated by giving 6 months’ notice in writing. 

The Company does not pay any remuneration to the Non-executive Directors of the Company except for the payment of sitting 

fees for attending Board meetings, Committee’s meetings and meeting of Independent Directors. The Company has not issued 

stock options to any of its directors. 

Details of sitting fees paid to the Executive/Non-executive Directors/Independent Directors during the year and the shares held 

by them in the Company as on March 31, 2022 is as under:- 

Sr. No. Name of the Director Gross Sitting Fees (In Rs.) Equity Shares 

1. Mr. Vashu L. Bhagnani 2000/- 2444370 

2. Mrs. Puja V. Bhagnani 2000/- 252519 

3. Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 2000/- 243988 

4. Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel 2000/- NA 

5. Mr. Habibulla Sayed 2000/- NA 

No commission was paid to directors during the year under review. 

4. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

As on March31, 2022, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee (SRC) comprised of Mr. Habibulla Sayed (Chairman), Mr. 

Narendrakumar B. Patel and Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh as members of the Committee. The Committee comprised of two 

independent directors (including Chairman) and one Non- Executive director. During the year, 2 (Two) meetings of the 

Committee were held on September 03, 2021, and November 14, 2021. 

Sr. No. Name of the Member Nature of Membership No. of Meetings Attended/eligible to 

attend 

1 Mr. Habibulla Sayed Chairman 2/2 

2 Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel Member 2/2 

3 Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh Member 2/2 

During the year, no changes occurred in the composition of the committee is as follows: 

As on March 31, 2022, no request for transfer of shares and for dematerialization/rematerialisation of shares was pending for 
approval.  

Name and designation of Compliance officer: Murli M. Thanvi (w.e.f. 05/12/2020) Sairam A. Majgaonkar (w.e.f. 10/08/2022) 

Terms of Reference: 

1. To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/transmission of 
shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general 

meetings etc. 

2. Reviewmeasurestakenforeffectiveexerciseofvotingrightsbyshareholders. 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered by the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends 

and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company. 
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There were no major complaints from the investors. Routine complaints relating to non-receipt of annual report, details of 
shares offered, payment of dividends, transfer of shares, dematerialization of shares, issue of duplicate shares, request for change 

of address, non-returning of share certificate which was mainly due to old invalid share certificate, etc. were attended generally 

within prescribed time. The Company has not received any material complaints from Shareholders through SEBI, Stock 

Exchanges (BSE) and other market securities market intermediaries (NSDL & CDSL) during the year under review. Details of 
shareholders’ complaints received and redressed during the financial year 2020-21 are as follows: - 

Opening Balance at the beginning of 

the year 

Received during 

the year 

Resolved during 

the year 

Remain unresolved at the end of 

the year 

0 0 0 0 

5. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

i). Details of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as follows: 

AGM Date & Time of AGM Venue of AGM 

32nd 30th Day of September, 2019  
at 11:00 A.M. 

Pinnacle Business Park, CTC 252, 93PT, 94PT, Shanti Nagar, Next to Ahura Centre, 
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093. 

33rd  31st Day of December, 2020  

at 03:00 P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) at Registered 

Office of the Company. 

34th 28th day of September, 2021  

at 03.00 P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) at Registered 

Office of the Company. 

ii). The details of the Special Resolutions passed in the Annual General Meetings held in the previous three (3) years are given 
below: 

AGM Date &Time of AGM Description of Special Resolution 

32nd 30th Day of September, 2019  

at 11:00 A.M. 

Appointment of Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel (DIN: 08467505) as Independent Director 

of the Company. 

33rd  31st Day of December, 2020  

at 03:00 P.M. 

- 

34th 28th day of September, 2021  

at 03.00 P.M. 

- 

Related Party Transactions: 

There were no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with related parties during the year, which 
may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The details of transactions with related parties are 

disclosed in the Accounts. The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions in terms of provisions of regulation 53 and 

SCHEDULE V of SEBI LODR, 2015 is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed at: 

www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in 
Compliance with Regulations: 

There were neither non- compliance on any matters related to capital markets by the Company during the last three years, nor 

did the Company attract any penalties or strictures passed by the stock exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority 

Risk Management: 

The process of identification and evaluation of various risks inherent in the business environment and the operations of the 
Company and initiation of appropriate measures for prevention and/or mitigation of the same are dealt with by the concerned 

operational heads under the overall supervision of the Managing Directors of the Company. The Audit Committee periodically 

reviews the adequacy and efficacy of the overall risk management system. 

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors: 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 14.02.2022. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

The Company has complied with all the applicable requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on 

all matters relating to capital markets during the last three years. No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company 
by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or other Statutory Authorities relating to the above. 

6. Code of Conduct: 

All directors and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for 2020-21 as required under 

regulation 26(3) of SEBI LODR, 2015. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Directors is annexed to this Report. 
There were no materially significant transactions during the financial year with Board members and senior management, 

including their relatives that had or could had a potential conflict of interest with the Company. The code of conduct is available 

on the website of the Company. 

7. Code for Prevention of Insider Trading (PIT): 

The Company has instituted a Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading in the securities of the Company for its Directors 
and designated persons as required by SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. The 

PIT Code is available on the website of Company. 

8. MD and CFO Certification: 

In accordance with the requirement of Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI LODR, 2015, the CEOs i.e. Managing Director and CFO i.e., 
Chief Financial Officer have furnished the requisite certificates to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

9. Means of Communication: 
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The quarterly un-audited and yearly audited financial results are published in English and regional language newspapers. The 
financial results, shareholding pattern and other corporate communication to the Stock Exchange (BSE through BSE Online 

Portal) are filed in compliance with Regulation 30, 31 and 33 of SEBI LODR, 2015 and are also available on the corporate website 

of the Company; The Management Discussion and Analysis is a part of the Annual Report. All financial and other vital information 

is promptly communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed. During the financial year under review, 
the Company has not made any separate presentation to financial analysts. Information, in words and visuals, about the Company 

and its businesses, including production, projects executed, facilities and processes, quality policy, financial results, shareholding 

pattern, code of conduct, press releases etc. is available at the corporate website at www.poojaentertainmentandfilms.in 

10. SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION: 35th Annual General Meeting: 

Date Thursday, 29th September, 2022 

Time 03:00 p.m. 

Venue Since the meeting being held through video conferencing the deemed venue for 35th AGM 

shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

Tentative Financial calendar: 

Second quarter financial results On or before 14/11/2022 

Third quarter financial results On or before 14/02/2023 

Quarter Four Results On or before 30/05/2023 

Date of Book Closure/ Cut-off date for e-voting: 
Date of Book Closure: from 23/09/2022 to 29/09/2022 (both days inclusive) 

Cut-off date: 22/09/2022 

Date of Book Closure/ Cut-off date for e-voting:  

No dividend is recommended by Board. 

Stock Exchange Listing: 
Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and the applicable listing fees have been duly paid 

to these Stock Exchanges for the FY: 2021-22. 

Stock Code: 

BSE 532011 

ISIN of Securities INE147C01017 

Share Transfer Agents: 
The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. (RTA), Mumbai, as its share transfer agent for carrying out the work 

relating to share transfer / dematerialization / re-materialisation of shares and allied activities. All physical transfers, 

transmission, transposition, issue of duplicate share certificate(s), issue of demand drafts in lieu of dividend warrants etc. as well 

as requests for dematerialization/re-materialisation are being processed periodically at Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd. The work 
relating to dematerialization/re-materialisation was handled by Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd through connectivity with National 

Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services India Ltd. (CDSL). 

Stock Price Data: 

Monthly highs and lows of the Company's Equity Share prices on the BSE and NSE in the FY: 2021-22, are given hereunder: 
Period Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) (In ` Per share) 

Month’s High Price Month’s Low Price 

Apr-21 65.75 54.05 

May-21 77 58.90 

Jun-21 130.50 64.10 

Jul-21 211.95 92.45 

Aug-21 312.90 206.45 

Sep-21 259.90 178.50 

Oct-21 214.80 154.90 

Nov-21 205.95 139.85 

Dec-21 191.90 147 

Jan-22 180 156.25 

Feb-22 191.50 151.45 

Mar-22 180.95 151.05 

Comparative Stock Price Performance: 

The Equity share prices of the Company on BSE in comparison with the BSE Sensex are given in the following graph: 
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• Distribution of Shareholding: 

 

a) Shareholding pattern of the Equity Shares as on March 31, 2022 is as under: 

SI. 

No. 

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares % of total Shareholding 

1 Promoter and Promoter Group 3614817 73.09 

2 Mutual Funds - - 

3 Banks and Financial Institutions / NBFC’s Registered with 
the RBI 

- - 

4 Insurance Companies - - 

5 Body Corporates 141803 02.84 

6 Clearing Member 8694 0,17 

7 Foreign Institutional & Portfolio Investors - - 

8 Non–Resident Indians /OCB’S 2318 00.05 

9 IEPF Authority - - 

10 Public and others 1192868 23.85 

 Total 5000500 100.00 

• Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity: 

SEBI amended regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, prohibiting transfer of securities (except transmission or 

transposition of shares) in physical form from 1 April 2019. Accordingly, the Company had sent letters to members holding 

shares in physical form advising them to dematerialise their holdings. 

The Company’s Shares are dealt with at both the depositories viz. NSDL and CDSL. The Company for the benefit of the 

Shareholders has made onetime payment to NSDL towards custodial charges.  

The dematerialisation level percentage as on March 31, 2021 stood at 83.19% of total paid-up Equity Share capital. 

As on March 31, 2022, 1973 shareholders held 4162640 equity Shares in demat and 254 shareholders held 837860 equity shares 

in physical form. 

• Address for Correspondence: 

Share Transfer Agents: 

Bigshare Services Private Limited 

Office No S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, 

Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, 

Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400093Tel: 022-62638236 

E-mail-investor@bigshareonline.com 

Website: www.bigshareonline.com 

(i) Demat of Equity Shares: 

Respective Depository Participants of Shareholders 

(ii) Shares: 

Pooja House, 1st Floor, CTS No. 892-893, Juhu Tara Road, Opp. J. W. Marriott Hotel, Juhu, Mumbai 400049 

Tel: Shares: 022-26121613/14 Fax: 022-26631275 

E-mail: investors@poojaentertainmentandfilms.in 

11. ADOPTION OF MANDATORY & NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS: 

Mandatory 

The Company has fully adopted the mandatory requirements of all Regulations of SEBI LODR, 2015. 

Non-mandatory 

i) Shareholder rights: Quarterly financial results were published in one English newspaper and in one Marathi newspaper. 

ii) Audit Qualifications: The auditors’ report does not contain any qualification. 

iii) Separate post of Chairman and CEO: The Company separate chairperson. 

Distribution of Shareholding No. of Equity Shareholder % to Equity Shares Share Amount % to Share Amount 

1-5000 2040 91.6031 1343490 02.6867 

5001-10000 110 04.9394 828850 01.6575 

10001-20000 26 01.1675 387200 00.7743 

20001-30000 8 0.2245 207690 00.4153 

30001-40000 5 00.4451 191490 00.3829 

40001-50000 9 00.4041 421500 00.8429 

50001-100000 3 00.1347 226980 00.4539 

100001 and above 26 01.1675 46397800 92.7863 

Total 2227 100.0000 50005000 100.0000 
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iv) Reporting of Internal Auditor: 

v) Internal Auditors are invited to the meetings of the Audit Committee wherein they report directly to the Committee. 

12.  Certificate on Corporate Governance: 

The Company has obtained a certificate from M/s. B. K. Pradhan & Associates., Practicing Company Secretary, regarding 
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI LODR, 2015. This certificate is annexed to this 

Corporate Governance Report. The certificate will be sent to the Stock Exchanges along with the Annual Report to be filed by 

the Company. 

13.  Details of fees paid to Statutory Auditors: 

During the financial year FY: 2021-22, total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries#, on a consolidated 

basis, to the statutory auditors, M/s. Jayantilal Thakkar & Co., Chartered Accountants and all entities in the network 

firm/network entity of which the statutory auditors is a part, is as under: 

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013: 

The disclosure as required under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013 is given below: 

a. Number of complaints filed during FY: 2021-22 00 

b. Number of complaints disposed of during FY: 2021-22 00 

c. Number of complaints pending at the end of FY: 2021-22 00 

15. Certificate on non-disqualification of Directors: 

All the Directors of the Company have submitted a declaration stating that they are not debarred or disqualified by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of Companies. A certificate to this effect issued by Mr. Balkrishan Pradhan of M/s. B. K. Pradhan & 

Associates, Practising Company Secretary is annexed to this report. 

16. Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and likely impact on 

equity: 

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants/any convertible instruments. 

17. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

Your Company does not deal in any commodity and hence is not directly expose to any commodity price risk. Further, the 

Company has no foreign exchange exposure; hence hedging is not required. 

18. Plant Locations: 

The Company is mainly engaged in Film production 7 distribution and there is no need of plants or manufacturing units. 

19. List of Credit Ratings: 

During the year under review your Company has not obtained any Credit Rating as the same was not applicable to the 

company. 

20.  Other Disclosures: 

A. All transactions entered into by the Company with related parties as defined under the Act and the Listing Regulations, 

during the financial year 2021-22 were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length pricing basis. The transaction 

with related parties has been disclosed in the notes forming part of the financial statement. There were no transactions of a 

material nature with any of the related parties, which was in conflict with the interests of the Company. 

B. The Company has complied with all requirements of Stock Exchange, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the SEBI 

Regulations and Guidelines and that no penalty was imposed by SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any matter related to 
capital markets during the last three years except for the instances of inadvertent delay in compliance w.r.t. SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 and fine levied by Stock Exchange for below mentioned instances: 

2019-20: Nil 

2020-21: The Company is required to furnish quarterly report on Investor Grievances within 21 days from the end of the 

quarter as per regulation 13(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for quarter ended June 2020 to the Stock Exchange. A fine of 

`1000 for one day delay was imposed and paid. 

2021-22: Nil 

C. The Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy, the same being uploaded on Company’s web portal. It 

is affirmed that no personnel have been denied access to the audit committee. 

Particulars of Auditors remuneration Paid by Company (Amount in Lakh) 

As Statutory Auditors 2.25 

For Quarterly-Limited Review 0.50 

For Tax Audit - 

For reimbursement of Exp. -- 

For other services 0.20 

Total (Amount in Rs.) 2.95 

# During the year, no service has been received by the subsidiary companies from the Statutory Auditors of the Company.  
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D. The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirement of Listing Regulations.  

E. Weblink to access policy for determine ‘material’ subsidiaries: http://shrikrishnadevconlimited.com/code-of-conduct/ 

F. Weblink to access policy on related party transactions: http://shrikrishnadevconlimited.com/code-of-conduct/ 

G. Your Company does not deal in any commodity and hence is not directly expose to any commodity price risk. Further, the 

Company has no foreign exchange exposure; hence hedging is not required. 

H. During the FY 2021-22, the Company has not raised funds through any kind of issue through public issue, rights issue, 

preferential issue, qualified institutions placement etc. 

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Company has obtained a 
Certificate from Mr. Balkrishan Pradhan, a Company Secretary in Practice certifying that none of the Directors of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs (MCA) or by any such statutory authority. The said Certificate is given in the Annual Report. 

J. During the FY 2021-22, there were no instances reported / recorded, where the Board of Directors of the Company did not 

accept recommendation(s) of any of its committees. 

K. The Company has not made any Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are 

interested during the FY 2021-22. 

L. Company has complied all the requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-paras (2) to (10) of Part C of Schedule V 

of Listing Regulations. 

M. The Company has complied with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of 
sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations. 

N. The Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and minimization 

procedures. These procedures are periodically reviewed to ensure that the executive management controls risk through means 

of properly defined framework. 

O. In the preparation of financial statements, the Company has followed the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The 

significant accounting policies which are applied are set out in the Annexure to Notes to accounts forming part of this Annual 

report. 

P. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in securities 

by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s 
shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by such designated persons who are expected to have access to 

unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. 

21.  Nomination: 

Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose name the shares shall 

be transferable in case of death of the registered shareholder(s). Nomination facility in respect of shares held in electronic form 

is also available with the Depository Participants as per bye laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. 

22.  Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report: 

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted 

capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) and total issued 

and listed capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the reports thereon are submitted to the listed Stock Exchange. 
The audit confirm that the total listed and paid-up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in 

dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form. 

23.  Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account: 

The Company does not have any shares in the demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account. 

24.  Declaration of compliance with Code of Conduct: 

I, Pooja V. Bhagnani, Managing Director of Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited declare that all the Members of the Board of 

Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 

2022. 

 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited 
 

 

 

Puja V. Bhagnani  Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
Managing Director  Director 

DIN: 00044593  DIN: 02146210 

Place: London  DIN: Mumbai 

Date: 30-08-2022  Date: 30-08-2022 
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MD/ CFO Certification 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) and Schedule II Part B of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

The Members of, 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation 2015; we hereby certify to the Board that: 

 
A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 31.03.2022 and that to the best of our 

knowledge and belief: 

 

(1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading; 

 

(2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which are 

fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of conduct. 

 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated 
the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the 

auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 

and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 
D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

 

(1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

 
(2) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements; and 

 

(3) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 

employee having significant role in the listed entity’s internal control system over financial reporting. 
 

 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited 
 

 

Puja V. Bhagnani  Omkar Pathak 

Managing Director  CFO 
DIN: 00044593  - 

Place: London  Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30-05-2022  Date: 30-05-2022 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and

 Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of, 
POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of POOJA 

ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED having CIN L99999MH1986PLC040559 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 

produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with 
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number 
(DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its 

officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 

31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority 
 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company 

1 Mr. Vashu L. Bhagnani 00043481 31/01/2008 

2 Mrs. Puja V. Bhagnani 00044593 30/06/2008 

3 Mrs. Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 02146210 30/06/2008 

4 Mr. Habibulla Sayed 06535028 01/03/2013 

5 Mr. Narendrakumar B. Patel 08467505 30/05/2019 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 

the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

 

For B. K. Pradhan and Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 

Balkrishan Pradhan 

Proprietor 
M. No.: F8879 

C.P. No.: 10179 

Firm Unique Identification No. - S2012MH172500 

Peer Review Certificate No:- 2022/2022 
Date: 30-08-2022 

Place: Mumbai 

UDIN: F008879D000879815 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Annexure-III 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To  

The Members of, 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED. 

Mumbai 

To, The Members of Eros International Media Limited We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED ("the Company"), for the year ended on 31 March 2022, as stipulated in 

Regulation 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and Para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the said Company with stock exchange(s). 

 The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to 

procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations made by 

the Directors and the management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in Regulation 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 Para C, D and E of Schedule V and SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its 

obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with the relevant regulations of Corporate Governance and 
should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty 

of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior 

consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this 

report. 

For B. K. Pradhan & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 

 

Balkrishan Pradhan 

Proprietor 
Membership No.: F8879 

C. P. No.: 10179 

Firm Unique Identification No. - S2012MH172500 

Peer Review Certificate No:- 2022/2022 
Date: 30-08-2022 

Place: Mumbai 

UDIN:F008879D000879848   

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 

 

Page | 28 

Annexure-IV 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FORM MR-3 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 
 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted 

in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained  by 

the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 

year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 

Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by “the 
Company” for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’): - 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011. 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

c. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
vi. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (SEBI Act) were not applicable to the Company during the financial year:    

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; and 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

 

2.  I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the all-material provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant 

documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test – check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable 

specifically to the Company: 
1. Transfer of Property Act, 1882; 

2. The building and other Construction Workers ‘(Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service) Act, 1996; 

3. Registration Act, 1908; 

4. The Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act,2016; 
5. Indian Stamp Act, 1899; 

6. All General Law related to Direct and indirect Taxation, Labour Law and other incidental Law of respective states. 

 

I further report that: 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 

Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 

were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
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before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

For B. K. Pradhan and Associates 

Company Secretaries 

 
Balkrishan Pradhan 

Proprietor 

M. No.: F8879 

C.P. No.: 10179 
Firm Unique Identification No. - S2012MH172500 

Peer Review Certificate No:- 2022/2022 

Date: 30-08-2022 

Place: Mumbai 
UDIN: F008879D000879837 
 

 

To, 

The Members, 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 
POOJA HOUSE, 1ST FLOOR, CTS NO. 892-893,  

JUHU TARA ROAD, OPP. J. W. MARRIOTT HOTEL,  

JUHU, MUMBAI City MH 400049 IN 

 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 
the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial 

records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis of our opinion.  
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.  
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.  
 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test check basis.  
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

For B. K. Pradhan and Associates 

Company Secretaries 
 

Balkrishan Pradhan 

Proprietor 

M. No.: F8879 
C.P. No.: 10179 

Firm Unique Identification No. - S2012MH172500 

Peer Review Certificate No:- 2022/2022 

Date: 30-08-2022 
Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure-V 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR 
 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs being/proposed to be 

undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs. 

CSR Policy is stated herein below: 

Web-link of the website: https://poojaentertainmentandfilms.in 
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 
SR. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation / Nature of 
directorship 

Number of 
meetings of 

CSR 
Committee 
held during 

the year 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 

Committee 
attended during 

the year 

1. Mr. Narendrakumar B Patel Chairman– Independent Director 1 1 
2. Mr. Habibulla Sayed Member– Independent Director 1 1 
3. Mrs. Deepshikha D. 

Deshmukh 
Member– Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

1 1 

 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the board are 

disclosed on the website of the Company. 

The web-link for CSR committee composition, CSR Policy and CSR Projects are as under: 

 
CSR committee composition https://poojaentertainmentandfilms.in 

CSR policy https://poojaentertainmentandfilms.in 

CSR project (FY 2021-22) Not Applicable 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).NA 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off or the financial year, if any. NA 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) – 826.67 lakhs. 
7.  

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 16.53 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years 0.68 

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b – 7c) 16.53 

 
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial 

Year(Amount in 
lakh) 

Amount Unspent (in `) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 

CSR Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 

VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer 

16.53 -----Not Applicable---- 

 

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA 

 (c)Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 
Sr. No Name of the 

project 
Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act 

Local 
area 
(Yes 
/No) 

Location of the project. Amount spent 
for the 

project(Amount 
in lakh) 

Mode of 
Implementation 
Direct (Yes/No) 

Mode of 
Implementation –

Through Implementing 
Agency 

State State Name CSR 
Registration 

No. 
1. Lilaram 

Bhagnani 
Charitable 

Trust 

Education 
and 

Health 

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 16.53 Yes NA NA 

TOTAL 16.53 

 

 (d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

 (e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

https://poojaentertainmentandfilms.in/
https://poojaentertainmentandfilms.in/
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 (f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b +8c +8d+ 8e): 16.53 lakh 
 (g) Excess amount for set off, if any: 

Sr. 
No 

Particulars Amount in lakh 

1 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 16.53 
2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 16.53 
3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(2)-(1)] 0.00 
4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

Financial years, if any 
0.68 

5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(3)-(4)] 0.68 

 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA 
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):NA 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 

through CSR spent in the financial year: (asset-wise details) 
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). Nil 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. Nil 
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 

their address etc. 
Nil 

(d) Provided details of the capital asset(s)created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset) 

Nil 

 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 

135(5) – NA 
 

 

 

 
Narendrakumar B. Patel Deepshikha D. Deshmukh  

Chairman of CSR Committee Director Date: 30-08-2022 

DIN: 08467505 DIN: 02146210 Place: Mumbai 
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Annexure-VI 

Extract from Nomination and Remuneration Policy,  

Appointment Criteria and Qualifications: 

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for appointment as 
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. 

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered for appointment. 
The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / 

satisfactory for the concerned position. 
c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director who has attained the age of 

seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the 

approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion 
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 

Term / Tenure 
a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not 
exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

b) Independent Director: 
An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-

appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of up to maximum of 5 years each, but such Independent 
Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided that an 

Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other 
capacity, either directly or indirectly. 

At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such Independent Director 
serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case 

such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 

Removal 
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations there under, the 

Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel 
subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

Evaluation Policy: 
Following are the parameters for the purpose of evaluating the performance of the Board and that of Committees and Individual Directors: 

 

Rating Scale 

RATING DESCRIPTION 

1 Does not meet evaluation parameter 

2 Meets evaluation parameter 

3 Exceeds evaluation parameter 

N/A Not Applicable 

Evaluation of Board 

S. No. Assessment Criteria 

1 
Is the composition of the board appropriate with the right mix of knowledge and skills required to drive organizational 
performance in the light of future strategy? 

2 Independent Members of the board meet all applicable independence requirements. 

3 
The Board of Directors is effective in establishing a corporate environment that promotes timely and effective disclosure, fiscal 

accountability, high ethical standards and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

4 
The Board of Directors is effective in developing a corporate governance structure that allows and encourages the Board to 
fulfill its responsibilities. 

5 
The Company’s systems of control are effective for identifying material risks and reporting material violations of policies and 
law and The Board is provided with sufficient information about material risks and problems that affects the Company’s 

business and prospects. 

6 
The Board receives regular financial updates and takes all necessary steps to ensure the operations of the organization are 

sound and reviews the organization’s performance in carrying out the stated mission on a regular basis. 

7 Are sufficient numbers of board meetings, of appropriate length, being held to enable proper consideration of issues? 

8 

The information provided to directors prior to Board meetings meets expectations in terms of length and level of detail and 

Board members come prepared to meetings and ask appropriate questions of management and address issues that might 
present a conflict of interest. 

9 
Board meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open communication, meaningful participation, and timely 

resolution of issues. 

10 
The Chairman of the Board effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates the Board meetings and the policy and governance 

work of the Board. 

11 
Nomination and appointment of Board members and their Remuneration follow clearly established procedures using known 
criteria as laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
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12 
The Board oversees the role of the independent auditor from selection to termination and has an effective process to evaluate 
the independent auditor’s qualifications and performance (through its Audit Committee). 

13 Company has a system for Corporate Social Responsibility, Stakeholder Relationships and for prohibition of insider trading 

14 Company has necessary Committees which are required and these Committees are working effectively 

15 Adherence to Internal Policies and Procedures. 

Evaluation of Committees 

S. No. Assessment Criteria 

1 Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act and Other applicable laws. 

2 Compliance with Code of Conduct of the Company. 

3 Committee’s accomplishments w.r.t. performance objectives. 

4 Adherence to Articles of Association, Companies Act and Other applicable laws. 

5 Redressal of Complaints and Grievances. 

6 Coordination with other committees and with Board of Directors. 

7 Fulfillment of Roles and Responsibilities in accordance to Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

8 Adherence to Internal Policies and Procedures. 

Evaluation of Individual Directors (Independent Directors) 

S. No. Assessment Criteria 

1 Attendance and participations in the Meetings and timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings 

2 
Adherence to code of conduct of Company and disclosure of non – independence, as and when it exists and disclosure of 
interest 

3 Raising of valid concerns to the Board and constructive contribution to resolution of issues at meetings 

4 Interpersonal relations with other directors and management 

5 Objective evaluation of Board’s performance, rendering independent, unbiased opinion 

6 
Understanding of the Company and the external environment in which it operates and contribution to strategic 

direction. 

7 Safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers under vigil mechanism and Safeguard of confidential information 

8 Adherence to Internal Policies and Procedures. 

Evaluation of Individual Directors (Non– Independent Directors/CMD/WTD) 

S. No. Assessment Criteria 

1 Attendance, participations in the Meetings and timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings 

2 Contribution towards growth of the Company including actual vis-a-vis budgeted performance. 

3 
Leadership initiative, like new ideas and planning towards growth of the Company and steps initiated towards 

Branding of the Company 

4 Adherence to code of conduct of Company 

5 Team work attributes and supervising & training of staff members 

6 Compliance with policies, Reporting of frauds, violation etc. and disclosure of interest 

7 Safeguarding of interest of whistle blowers under vigil mechanism and Safeguard of confidential information 

8 Adherence to Internal Policies and Procedures. 

 
Remuneration Policy: 

The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include: 

To consider and determine the Remuneration, based on the performance and also bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable 

and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem appropriate all 
elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board. And to approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key 

managerial personnel of the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term 

performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company. 

Remuneration to Managing/Whole-time/Executive/Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel: 

The Remuneration/ Compensation/ Commission etc. to be paid to Director / Managing Director etc. shall be governed asper provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force. 

Remuneration to Non- Executive/Independent Director: 

They may be paid such remuneration by way of setting fees for meetings of the Board and its Committees as may be decided by the 

Board. The amount of sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013andrules made there under 
or any other enactment for the time being in force. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Economy Scenario: 

The global entertainment & media (E&M) industry surged ahead last year, strongly outpacing overall global economic growth.  

Following a pandemic-related 2.3% decline in 2020, E&M revenue rose a strong 10.4% in 2021, from US$2.12trn to US$2.34trn.  

With the industry becoming more digital, more mobile and more youth-oriented, virtual reality (VR) and gaming are powerful 

growth drivers, while digital advertising permeates all of the industry. After a brief decline in 2020, the global entertainment and 

media industry is poised for strong growth. (Source: pwc.com) 

 
Note: 2021 is the latest available data. 2022–2026 values are forecasts. 

Source: PwC’s Global Entertainment & Media Outlook 2022–2026, Omdia 

 

Media and Entertainment Industry: 

According to IBEF Indian media industry has tremendous scope for growth in all the segments due to rising income and evolving 

lifestyle. As per BCG report, India’s M&E industry is expected to grow between US$ 55-70 billion by 2030. The market is projected 

to increase at a CAGR of 17% between 2020 and 2023. 

According to EY-Parthenon, India’s publishing industry is likely to reach Rs. 80,000 crore (US$ 10.74 billion) by 2024. Key growth 

drivers included rising demand for content among users and affordable subscription packages. The Indian mobile gaming market is 

growing at a pace in tandem with the global trend and is expected to reach US$ 7 billion in 2025. The online gaming market in 

India is projected to reach Rs. 155 billion (US$ 2.12 billion) by 2023, from Rs. 76 billion (US$ 1.08 billion) in 2020, due to rapid 

increase in consumption. 

 
Note: 2021 is the latest available data. 2022–2026 values are forecasts. 

Source: PwC’s Global Entertainment & Media Outlook 2022–2026, Omdia 

Business Overview: 

Pooja Entertainment And Films Limited (BSE Script Code: 532011) is a leading Entertainment content house in the India and an 

Integrated player in the Media and Entertainment Industry. It co-produces and produces films, as well as exploits and distributes 

films in India and also in overseas through music release, theatrical distribution, DVD and VCD release, television licensing, and 

other new media distribution avenues. 

Business Strategy: 

The company is having a twofold focus approach; one with development of own high-quality content and second in distributing 

Bollywood as well as international movies. 

Our focus is on growth while delivering exceptional values to our customers, viewers and stakeholders. We strive to build strong 

competitive position in M&E industry on the back of quality content. 
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We emphasis on the need of the consumer which varies based on various factors like age-group, geography and language. We 

maintain our position by predicting audience preferences. 

At PEFL, we distribute our content globally, using a robust network that we have built over decades. We are able to use our 

distribution strength to effectively monetise content and capture higher value. 

Customer segmentation is driving a multi - strategy approach 

Operational Overview: 

During the year, PEFL has released 2 movies – 

• Bell Bottom 

• Shava Ni Girdharilal 

Company continues its focus on building a strong movie slate for the future. 

Financial Performance Overview: 

Financial Results (Standalone & Consolidated): 

         (` In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Standalone Consolidated 

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 

Total Revenue 948.19 80.59 2459.47 299.88 

Total Expenses 918.59 81.19 2169.29 234.05 

Profit before exceptional items & tax 29.60 (0.60) 290.18 65.83 

Exceptional items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Profit before Tax 29.60 (0.60) 290.18 65.83 

Tax Expenses (10.41) (3.76) (10.41) (3.76) 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 0.00 0.00 12.10 (5.71) 

Total comprehensive income for the year 19.20 (4.36) 291.87 56.36 

Operational Overview: 

During the financial year 2021-22, total revenue on standalone and consolidated increased to Rs.`948.19 Lakhs and Rs.`2459.47   
Lakhs as  against Rs.`80.59 and Rs.`299.88 respectively in the previous year; Profit before Tax for the current year is standalone 

Rs.29.60 Lakhs and consolidated Rs.`290.18 Lakhs as against standalone Rs.`(0.60) Lakhs and consolidated Rs.`65.83 Lakhs in the 

previous year and the total comprehensive income for the current year stood at standalone Rs.`19.20 Lakhs and consolidated 

Rs.`291.87 Lakhs as against standalone Rs.`(4.36) Lakhs and consolidated Rs.`56.36 Lakhs in the previous year. 
Opportunities & Threats: 

Some of the largest fault lines in the world involve income and access to technology. In 2021, 72.7% of households had fixed 

broadband internet access, and 60.7% of the population had mobile internet access. That means there are still billions of people in 

the world who are not yet able to regularly access high-speed internet. 

The fastest-growing country by consumer revenue is Turkey, with a 14.2% CAGR from 2021 through 2026. This rate will be driven 

by strong growth in video games, music and cinema. At the opposite end of the spectrum, Japan, which has an aging and declining 

population, will grow at just a 1.4% CAGR through 2026. The top ten countries by CAGR are in Latin America, the Middle East, 

Asia and Africa, where spending is low but video games and OTT video provide the majority of revenue increase. 

The medium most favoured by the young, video games, is among the sectors experiencing the most significant growth. In 2021, 

total video games revenue (excluding esports) reached US$214.2bn, and it will rise at an 8.4% CAGR to US$321.1bn in 2026. (The 

sector is one of just three to add more than US$100bn in revenue to its base over the forecast period; the others are internet 

advertising and internet access). In 2017, global video games made up a mere 6.1% of total E&M spending. By 2026, they will 

account for 10.9% as the niche becomes more mainstream. Revenues will be bolstered by rapidly increasing investment in in-app 

advertising. China and the US accounted for around half of global gaming and esports revenues in 2021. But many of the populous 

but less wealthy countries have lots of room for growth. The spending power of the global population is growing arithmetically. 

But the choices people have among streaming services (and the stated goal of E&M companies to sell them) seem to be growing 

geometrically. The biggest business stories of 2021 included the launch of Peacock, the debut of Paramount Plus and the organic 

growth of Disney+ (87.6m subscribers and counting). In India, where Disney+Hotstar, Amazon Prime, Netflix and Zee account for 

most OTT revenues, more than 40 other players are active. (Source: pwc.com) 

Segment Wise Performance: 

At present, the Company is engaged in the business of film production and distribution and there is no separate reportable 

segment.  

Outlook: 

This year presents unique challenges for India. The implied real GDP growth of 5 per cent for FY 2020-21 in the second advance 

estimates of the National Statistics Office, is now at risk from the pandemic’s impact on the economy. In the Union budget of 2022-

23 the Ministry of Information and broadcasting received Rs. 3,980.77 crore (US$ 520.24 million). The allocation to Prasar Bharati 

stood at Rs. 2,555.29 crore (US$ 333.84 million). The budget for other autonomous bodies such as the Press Council of India stood 

at Rs. 27 crore (US$ 3.52 million), Films and Television Institute of India (FTII) at Rs. 55.39 crore (US$ 7.18 million) and Indian 

Institute of Mass Communication at Rs. 52 crore (US$ 6.79 million). The allocation for broadcasting under social services stood at 

Rs. 2,839.29 crore (US$ 370.98 million). 
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Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy: 

Adequate systems of internal controls that commensurate with the size of operation and the nature of business of the Company 

have been implemented. Risks and controls are regularly viewed by senior and responsible officers of the Company that assure 

strict adherence to budgets and effective and optimal use of resources. The Internal control systems are implemented to safeguard 

Company's assets from unauthorized use or disposition, to provide constant check on cost structure, to provide adequate financial 

and accounting controls and implement accounting standards. 

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: 

In the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 

AS) have been followed. Pursuant to the notification dated February 16, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 

Company has adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015 with effect from April 1, 2017.  

Human Resource Development: 

The Company comprises a small team of professionals, who are result oriented, committed and loyal. The number of permanent 

employees on the rolls of company as on 31.03.2022 was 5. The Company is in real estate sector and for the development of 

projects we are in, we engage the services of consultants, contractors and sub-contractors who work on our projects, employ a 

significant labour force which includes skilled, unskilled and semi-skilled workers. In addition to our employees, the Company 
engages third party consultant engineers, architects, interior designers and landscape designers.  

Key Financial Ratios:  

In the key financial ratios for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2022, viz., the Debtors Turnover ratio, Inventory Turnover 

ratio, Interest Coverage ratio, Current ratio, Debt Equity ratio and Operating Profit margin, there were no significant changes (i.e., 

change of 25% or more) as compared to the immediately preceding Financial Year. 

Ratios Calculation 2022 2021 Explanations 

Debtors Turnover Ratio 
Sales Revenue 

0.56 0.03 
Decrease due to increase in sales and 
decrease in average trade receivables Average Accounts Receivable 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 
Cost of Goods Sold 

0.25 0  
Average Inventory 

Interest Coverage Ratio 

EBITDA 

1.95 2.38 

Due to increase in Interest Expense which is 

incurred on funds required for working 

capital 
Interest Expenses 

Current Ratio 
Current Assets 

2.25 2.26  
Current Liabilities 

Debt Equity Ratio 
Total Outside Liabilities 

0.25 0.08 
Higher ratio on account of acceptance of 
loan for working capital requirement Shareholder’s Equity 

Operating Profit Margin 
EBITDA 

6.68% 3.41% Due to increase in Sales Revenue 
Sales Revenue 

Net Profit Margin 
Net Income after tax 

2.04% -5.52% Due to increase in turnover 
Sales Revenue 

Return on Net Worth 
Net Income after tax 

0.55% -0.12% Due to increase in Net Income after tax 
Shareholder’s Equity 

Cautionary Statement:  

Certain statements contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) constitutes “forward-looking statements”. 

These include statements about Management’s expectations, beliefs, intentions or strategies for the future, which are indicated by 

words such as “anticipate, intend, believe, estimate, forecast and expect” and similar words. All forward-looking statements reflect 

Management’s current views with respect to future events, and are subject to numerous risks, uncertainties and assumptions that 

have been made. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied, depending upon global and Indian demand-

supply conditions, changes in Government regulations, tax regimes and economic developments within India and overseas.  

 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited 

 

 

Puja V. Bhagnani  Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 

Managing Director  Director 

DIN: 00044593  DIN: 02146210 

Place: London  DIN: Mumbai 

Date: 30-08-2022  Date: 30-08-2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited (the Company), which comprise 

the Balance Sheet as at 31stMarch, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement 

of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the 

standalone financial statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 

2022, and profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our 

responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note No.39 of the accompanying financial results, which describes the management's evaluation of impact of 

uncertainties related to COVID-I9 and its consequential effects on the operations of the Company. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 

standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

Revenue recognition 

The Company’s profit / (loss) is dependent on proper accounting of Revenue and is therefore susceptible to misstatement. Cut-off 

is the key assertion in so far as revenue recognition is concerned, since an inappropriate cut-off can result in material misstatement 
of results for the year. 

  

Auditor’s response 

Our audit procedures with regard to revenue recognition included testing controls, automated and manual, inventory 
reconciliations and assessing the recoverability of trade receivable balances, substantive testing for cut-offs and analytical review 

procedures. 

 

Other Information 
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 

auditors ‘report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit / loss 

(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
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accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so. 

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

standalone financial statements. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management. 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 

going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 

in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in 

terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable. 
 

A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the   best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive   income), the Statement of Changes 

in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the 

Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st   March, 2022 taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 

197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 

by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.  

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in   accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31stMarch, 2022on its financial position in 

its standalone financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
either individually or in the aggregate)have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either from borrowed funds 

or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 

including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 (b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge  and belief, no funds (which are material 

either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person orentity, including 

foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 

(ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company did not declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with Section 123 of 

the Act is not applicable. 
 

   FOR JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO. 

        Chartered Accountants 

   (Firm Reg. No. 104133W) 

PLACE:  Mumbai 
DATE:   30th May, 2022 

     DILIP J.THAKKAR 

    Partner 

   Membership No.005369 
       UDIN: 22005369AJXNFR1754 
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ANNEXURE - A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the standalone financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2022, we report that:  

 

(i) (a)(A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 

of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant detailsof right-of-use assets. 
 (B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

 (b)As explained to us, physical verification of these Property, Plant and Equipment is beingconducted in a phased 

programme by the management designed to cover all the assets over a period of three years, which in our opinion is 

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of assets.  According to the information and 
explanations given to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

 (c)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ourexamination of the records of the 

Company, the title deeds of immovable properties(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in thename of the 

Company. 
 (d)The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible 

assets during the year. 

 (e)No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for 

holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules 
made thereunder. 

(ii) (a)As explained to us physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management, 

The coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate, and discrepancies (which is less than 

10% in the aggregate for each class of inventory) noticed on such physical verification between physical stocks and book 
records were not material considering the operations of the Company and the same have been properly dealt with in the 

books of account. 

 (b) The company has not sanctioned any working capital, from a banks on the basis of security of current assets. Hence, 

reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) is not applicable. 

(iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to any companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties as covered in the register 

maintained under Section 189 of the Act.  Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the 

order are not applicable. 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to loans, investments and guarantees made.  

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit 

within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, and the rules framed thereunder. 

(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records prescribed 
under Section 148 (1) of the Act, are not applicable to the Company. 

(vii)   (a) According to the records of the Company and the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

generally been regularly depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 

Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales-Tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of 
Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it. There are no undisputed statutory dues as 

referred to above as at 31st March, 2022 outstanding for a period of more than six months from the date they become 

payable. 

  (b)According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Duty of 

Customs, Excise Duty and Service Tax that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of 
dispute and the forum where the disputes are pending are given below:- 

Name of Statute Nature of Dues Amount Period to which 

the Amount 

Relates 

Remarks 

(Rs. in 

Lakhs) 

MVAT Act,2002 Sales Tax (Including Interest 

and Penalty) 

20.11 2012-2013 Bombay High Court 

MVAT Act,2002 Sales Tax (Including Interest 

and Penalty) 

10.08 2013-2014 Bombay High Court 

Central Sales Tax 

Act,1956 

Sales Tax (Including Interest 

and Penalty) 

23.38 2013-2014 Bombay High Court 

 TOTAL 53.57   

 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
(ix) (a)Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the 

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 

lender. 
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 (b)The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

 (c)The term loans obtained during the year by the Company have been applied for the purposes for which they were 

obtained. 

 (d)On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima 
facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company. 

 (e)On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from 

any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

 (f)The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries companies. 

(x) (a)During the year, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

  (b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 

debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xi) (a)No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 
  (b)No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 

under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the 

date of this report. 

(c)As represented by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year. 
(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.  

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details 

of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards.  

(xiv) (a)In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its 

business. 

 (b)We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till 
date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons 

connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 

Company. 
(xvi)  (a)In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 

1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

  (b)In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 
(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding 

financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 

neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 

sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a)There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects 
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-

section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for 

the year. 

(b)  There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing projects requiring a 
transfer to a Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of the said financial year in compliance with the 

provision of sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not 

applicable for the year. 

    FOR JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO. 

        Chartered Accountants 
   (Firm Reg. No. 104133W) 

PLACE:  Mumbai 

DATE:   30th May, 2022 

     DILIP J.THAKKAR 
    Partner 

   Membership No.005369 

       UDIN: 22005369AJXNFR1754 
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report  

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”)  

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited (“the Company”) 
as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 

to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 

Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 

the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 

the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion  

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 

respects, an internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. 

FOR JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO. 

        Chartered Accountants 
   (Firm Reg. No. 104133W) 

PLACE:  Mumbai 

DATE:   30th May, 2022 

     DILIP J.THAKKAR 
    Partner 

   Membership No.005369 

       UDIN: 22005369AJXNFR1754 
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022 (Rs. In lakhs) 
PARTICULARS Note No. As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31,2021 
I ASSETS 

   

1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
   

    (a)  Property, Plant and equipment  3 3.63 4.75 
    (b) Financial Assets 

 
  

         (i) Investments 4 128.56 128.56 
        (ii)Other Financial Assets 5 20.11 6.51 
    (c) Income Tax Assets (net) 6 113.06 149.00 
    Total Non-Current Assets 

 
265.36 288.82 

      
   

2 CURRENT ASSETS 
   

    (a)  Inventories 7 3,318.52 3,255.24 
    (b)  Financial Assets 

   

       (i)  Trade Receivables 8 1,704.76 1,687.60 
      (ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 17.48 16.71 
      (iii)  Loans 10 3.00 3.00 
      (iv)  Other Financial Assets 11 115.01 173.53 
    (c) Other current assets 12 764.92 688.57 
    TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

 
5,923.69 5,824.65 

    TOTAL ASSETS  
 

6,189.05 6,113.47 
      

   

II  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
   

  Equity 
   

     (a) Share Capital 13 453.32 453.32 
     (b) Other Equity 14 3,057.87 3,038.67 
    TOTAL EQUITY 

 
3,511.19 3,491.99 

      
   

  Liabilities 
   

1 NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES 
   

     (a)Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 43.61 44.20 
    TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES 

 
43.61 44.20 

      
   

2 CURRENT LIABLITIES 
   

    (a) Financial Liabilities 
   

       (i) Borrowings 16 866.72 290.50 
       (ii) Trade Payables 17 

  

     - Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 
 

- - 
     - Due to Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 

 
1,333.01 1,679.51 

       (iii)Other financial liabilities 18 333.86 506.61 
    (b) Other current liabilities 19 100.66 100.66 
    TOTAL CURRENT LIABLITIES 

 
2,634.25 2,577.28 

    TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 

6,189.05 6,113.47 
      

 
    

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 1 to 40 
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.   
      
As per our report of even date.     
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W) Puja V. Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
 Managing Director Director 
Dilip J. Thakkar DIN: 00044593 DIN: 02146210 
Partner   
Membership No.005369   
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer Company Secretary 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022 (Rs. In lakhs) 
 
PARTICULARS Note 

No. 
As at  

March 31, 2022 
As at  

March 31, 2021 

I Revenue from operations 20                                
941.87  

                                
78.91  

II Other Income 21 6.32  1.68  

III Total Revenue (I+II) 
 

948.19  80.59  

    
   

IV Expenses: 
   

  Cost of production and Distribution of films 22 807.71  -    

  Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 23 -    -    

  Employee benefits expense 24 30.99  22.24  

  Finance Cost 25 32.18  2.17  

  Depreciation and other amortisation expense 26 
1.11  1.13  

  Other Expenses 27 46.60  55.65  

  Total Expenses 
 

918.59  81.19  

    
   

V Profit before tax ((III-IV) 
 

29.60   (0.60) 

  Add: Exceptional Item 
 

-    -    

  (Loss)/Profit after Exceptional Item 
 

29.60   (0.60) 

    
   

VI Tax expense: 
   

  - Current tax 
 

11.00  3.75  

  - Deferred tax (Credit)/Charge 
 

 (0.59) 0.01   
- Income Tax Related to Earlier Years 

 
0.00  -    

    
 

  
 

VII (Loss)/Profit after Tax (V-VI) 
 

19.20   (4.36) 

    
 

    
VIII  Other comprehensive Income (OCI) 

 
    

  items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss 
 

-    -    

  items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 
 

-    -    

  Total comprehensive income for the period (VII + VIII) 
 

19.20   (4.36) 

    
   

IX Earnings per equity share: 
   

  Basic and diluted 31 0.42   (0.10) 

 
 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 1 to 40 
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.   
      
As per our report of even date.     
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W) Puja V. Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
 Managing Director Director 
Dilip J. Thakkar DIN: 00044593 DIN: 02146210 
Partner   
Membership No.005369   
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer Company Secretary 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Rs. In lakhs) 
  For the year 

ended  
March 31, 2022 

For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2021 
A. Cash flow from operating activities      
      Profit before tax  29.60   (0.60) 
Adjustments for:      
 Depreciation  1.11  1.13  
 Finance Costs  32.18  2.17  
 Interest income   (4.72)  (1.67) 
 Operating profit before working capital changes  58.17  1.03  

Changes in working capital:  
  

 Adjustments for operating assets:  
  

  Decrease/(Increase) in inventories   (63.29)  (250.00) 

 Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables   (17.16) 2,480.20  

 Decrease/(Increase) in Loans, Other Financial Assets and Other 
 current Assets  

 (31.39)  (36.76) 

 Decrease in long-term loans and advances      
Adjustments for operating liabilities:      
 (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, Other current liabilities and 
 other financial Liabilities  

(519.25)  (2,445.40) 

Cash used in operating activities   (631.09)  (251.97) 
Direct Taxes and Income Tax Assets (Net)  24.93  17.50  
Net cash flow inflow/(Outflow) used in operating activities (A)   (547.99)  (233.43) 
B. Cash flow from investing activities        
 Purchase of Fixed assets  -    -    

 Proceeds from sale of non- current investments  - - 

 Interest received  4.72 1.67  

 Purchase of Long-Term Investments  -    -    
Net cash flow from investing activities (B)  4.72  1.67  
      
C. Cash flow from financing activities      
      
Proceeds/(Repayment) from short-term borrowings (Net)  576.22  242.67  
Finance Costs   (32.18)  (2.17) 
      
Net cash flow (Outflow)/inflow from financing activities (C)  544.04 240.50  
      

Net (decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  0.77 8.74  
      
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  16.71 7.97  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  17.48 16.71  
 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 1 to 40 
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.   
      
As per our report of even date.     
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W) Puja V. Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
 Managing Director Director 
Dilip J. Thakkar DIN: 00044593 DIN: 02146210 
Partner   
Membership No.005369   
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer Company Secretary 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 
 
(a) Equity share capital 

  
No. of Shares (Rs. in Lakhs) 

  

Balance as at 1st April 2020 50,00,500 453.32  

Changes in equity share capital -    -    

Balance as at 31 March 2021 50,00,500 453.32  

Changes in equity share capital -    -    

Balance as at 31 March 2022 50,00,500 453.32  

     

(b) Other Equity 
    

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Reserves and Surplus Statement of other 
comprehensive 

Income 

Total other 
equity 

General 
Reserve 

Retained 
earnings 

Remeasurements 
of the net defined 

benefit Plans 
 Balance as at 1st April 2020 7.88  3,035.15  -    3,043.03  

  
  

    
 Total Comprehensive          

 Profit for the year  -     (4.36) -     (4.36) 

 Transferred to General Reserve  - - - - 

 Balance as at 31st March 2021 7.88  3,030.79  -    3,038.67  

  -          

 Total Comprehensive          
 Profit for the year  -    19.20 -    19.20 

 Transferred to General Reserve  -    -    -    -    

 Balance as at 31st March 2022 7.88  3,049.98 -    3,057.87 

 
 
As per our report of even date.     
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W) Puja V. Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
 Managing Director Director 
Dilip J. Thakkar DIN: 00044593 DIN: 02146210 
Partner   
Membership No.005369   
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer Company Secretary 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 
          
NOTE - 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION       
  Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited ("the Company" or "PEFL") is engaged in film production and other related 

activities. The company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 
Pooja House, 1st Floor, CTS No. 892-893, Opp. J.W. Marriott Hotel, Juhu Tara Road, Juhu, Mumbai - 400049. 

          
NOTE - 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES       
          
2.01 Basis of preparation of financial statements       
  The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other 
relevant provisions of the Act. 

          
2.02 Use of estimates       
  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make estimates 

and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the 
reported income and expenses during the year.  The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the 
financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences 
between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialise. 
Significant estimates used by the management in the preparation of these financial statements include, classification of 
assets and liabilities into current and non-current, estimates of the economic useful lives of fixed assets. Any revision to 
accounting estimates is recognised prospectively.  

2.03 Tangible Fixed Assets - Property Plant and Equipment     
  Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises of the purchase price and any 

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.  
          
2.04 Inventories       
  Inventory comprises of unamortised cost of films and cost incurred till date for under production films. The cost of films is 

amortised in the ratio of current revenue to expected total revenue. At the end of each accounting period, balance 
unamortised cost is compared with net expected revenue. If net expected revenue is less than unamortised cost, the same 
is written down to net expected revenue. 

  Expenses of under production films incurred till the films are ready for release are inventorised. 
    
2.05 Investments:       
  All long term investments are valued at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of each long term investment is made to 

recognise a decline other than a temporary nature. Current Investments are carried individually at lower of cost or fair 
value and the resultant decline is charged to the revenue.                                                                                                                

          
2.06 Revenue Recognition       
  The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers with effect from 1st April 2018. 
  Film production and related income       
  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue from production of movie is 

recognized on assignment/ sale of the rights in the concerned movie from the date of their availability for exploitation or 
on the date of release of  the movie and in some other cases as per the terms of movie production agreements entered into 
with the customer , as applicable. 
Revenue from other rights in the movie such as satellite rights, overseas rights, music rights, video rights, etc., is 
recognized on assignment/ sale of the rights in the concerned movie from the date of their availability for exploitation , as 
applicable. 

          
  Interest income       
  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.       
          
2.07 Depreciation:       
  Depreciation on Tangible fixed assets are provided for in accordance with schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on addition/deduction during the year has been provided on Pro-rata basis.  
          
2.08 Taxation       
  Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the 

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Provision for current income tax is made on current tax rate based on assessable 
income computed under Income Tax Act 1961 or Book profit is computed under section 115JB (MAT) whichever is higher. 
MAT credit is recognised subject to requirement of virtual certainity that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
for set off. 

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to the timing differences 
between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are 
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax assets are not 
recognized unless, in the management judgment, there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed at each 
balance sheet date. 

          
2.09 Earning Per Share:       
  Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 

weighted average number of the equity shares outstanding during the period. 
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2.10 Impairment of Tangible assets       
          
  Carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment.  An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An 
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit & loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The 
impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of 
recoverable amount.  

          
2.11 Provisions and contingencies       
          
  A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates.  

  Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is 
confirmed by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the company. 

          
2.12 Rounding of amounts       
  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs (upto 2 decimal) as 

per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 
    
2.13 Standards issued or modified but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the company’s financial 

statements: 
  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below: 

          
  Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework       
  The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for 
Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. 
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

          
  Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use       
  The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts 

received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will 
recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have 
any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements. 

          
  Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract       
  The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. 

Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a 
clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

          
  Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)       
  The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing 

whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact 
in its financial statements. 

          
  Ind AS 116 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)       
  The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to 

resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease 
incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statements. 
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NOTE NO.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS AT 31ST MARCH 2022(Rs. In lakhs) 

    GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION (INCLUDING 
AMORTISATION) 

NET BLOCK 

 
Property, 
Plant and 
Equipment 

Balance As 
at 

01.04.2021 

Additions/
Adjustmen
ts During 
the year# 

Deductions/Ad
justments 
During the 

year# 

Balanc
e As at 
31.03.
2022 

Total 
upto 

31.03.20
21 

*For 
the 

Year 

Deductio
ns 

During 
the year 

Total 
upto 

31.03.
2022 

As At 
31.03.2

022 

As At 
31.03.20

21 

                        

  
Tangible 
Assets: 

                    

  
Plant and 
Equipment 

9.52 - - 9.52 4.90 1.01 - 5.92 3.60 4.62 

  
Office 
Equipment 

0.77 - - 0.77 0.64 0.10 - 0.74 0.03 0.13 

 Computer 2.98 - - 2.98 2.98 - - 2.98 - - 

    
          

 
TOTAL 
PROPERTY , 
PLANT AND 
EQUPMENT 

13.26 - - 13.26 8.52 1.11 - 9.63 3.63 4.75 

 
   (Rs. In Lakhs)  
Particulars As at March 31, 

 2022 
As at March 31, 

 2021 
NOTE NO. 4 : INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT) 

  

Investments in Equity Instruments at Cost     
(a) In 100% Subsidiary Company     
Morden Production FZ LLC UAE                    128.56                     128.56  
52500 Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up)                    128.56                     128.56  

NOTE NO.5 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS     

  Other advances - Security Deposits 20.11 6.51  
    20.11 6.51  

NOTE NO.6 : INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)     
  - Advance Payments of Taxes and Tax deducted at source (Net of 

Provisions) 
113.06 149.00  

    113.06 149.00  

NOTE NO.7 : INVENTORIES       
  Copyrights 114.76  114.76  
  Cost of films under production 684.43 621.15  
  Unamortised cost of production 2,519.33  2,519.33  
    3,318.52 3,255.24  
NOTE NO.8 : TRADE RECEIVABLES     

   Unsecured Considered good 1,704.76 1,687.60  
  Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -    -    
  Trade receivables - credit impaired -    -    
    1,704.76 1,687.60  

NOTE NO.9 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     

  -Balances with banks in current account 16.09  15.32  
  -Cash on hand 1.39  1.39  
    17.48  16.71  
NOTE NO.10: LOANS     

  -Loans and advances to employees 3.00  3.00  
    3.00  3.00  

NOTE NO.11: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 

  

  -Interest Receivables 115.01 173.53  
    115.01 173.53  

 
 
NOTE NO.12 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS  

- Advance payment for Film Projects 688.08 646.23  
  - Statutory dues towards TDS/VAT/CST/Service Tax/GST etc. (Net) 76.84 42.34  
    764.92 688.57  
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NOTE NO. 13 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
 

(Rs. In Lakhs)  
Share Capital     As at 

March 31, 
 2022 

As at 
March 31, 

 2021  
           
Authorised      
3,00,00,000/- Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 3,000.00  3,000.00   
           
Issued          
50,00,500/- Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 500.05  500.05   
           
Subscribed &paid-up          
50,00,500/- Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each with voting 
rights fully called up 

    500.05  500.05  

 
Less: Calls in Arrears     46.73  46.73   
           
Total     453.32  453.32       

  
13.1 Reconciliation of number of Shares outstanding at the 

beginning and end of the year   

    

 
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21  

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs)  

Equity Shares:          
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year – Fully 
paid 

43,77,400 437.74 43,77,400 437.74 

 
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year – Partly 
paid 

6,23,100 15.58 6,23,100 15.58 

 
Total at the beginning of the year 50,00,500 453.32 50,00,500 453.32  
Shares outstanding at the end of the year – Fully paid 43,77,400 437.74 43,77,400 437.74  
Shares outstanding at the end of the year – Partly paid 6,23,100 15.58 6,23,100 15.58  
Total at the end of the year 50,00,500 453.32 50,00,500 453.32       

13.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Share Capital 
    

 
Name of Shareholder  As at 

March 31, 
 2022 

As at 
March 31, 

 2021  
Equity Shares:      
Vashu Bhagnani 24,44,370  24,44,370   
% Holding  48.88  48.88   
Puja Bhagnani 2,52,519  2,52,519   
% Holding  5.05  5.05   
Jackky Bhagnani 7,13,940 6,73,940   
% Holding  14.28 13.48        

13.3 Shares held by promoters at the end 
of the year 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 % Change 
during the 

year 

 

Particulars No. of shares 
% of total 
shares 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares  

Vashu Bhagnani 24,44,370  48.88% 24,44,370  48.88% 0.00%  
Puja Bhagnani 2,52,519  5.05% 2,52,519  5.05% 0.00%  
Jacky Bhagnani 7,13,940  14.28% 6,73,940  13.48% 0.80%  
Deepshikha Deshmukh 2,43,988  4.88% 2,43,988  4.88% 0.00%  
Total 36,54,817  73.09% 36,14,817  72.29% 0.80%       

13.4 Details of Unpaid Call 
    

 
Particulars As At March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021  

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs)  

           
By Others 6,23,100  46.73  6,23,100  46.73   
  6,23,100  46.73  6,23,100  46.73        

13.5 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to 
receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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          (Rs. In lakhs) 

NOTE NO.14 As at March 31, 
 2022 

As at March 31, 
 2021 

OTHER EQUITY     
a. General Reserves     
Opening Balance 7.88  7.88  
Add: Addition during the year  -    -    
Closing Balance 7.88  7.88  
b. Surplus     
Opening Balance 3,030.79  3,035.15  
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 19.20   (4.36) 
      
Closing Balance 3,049.99 3,030.79  
c. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) -    -    

Closing Balance 3,057.87 3,038.67  
NOTE NO.15   
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)     

Net Deferred Tax Liability 43.61 44.20  
  43.61 44.20  

NOTE NO.16     
 BORROWINGS- CURRENT      

 - Current account with bank -    -  
Loans repayable on demand     
      - from Related Parties 866.72 290.50  
  866.72 290.50  

NOTE NO.17   
TRADE PAYABLE     

 - Due to Micro & Small Enterprises -    -    
 - Due to Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 1,333.01 1,679.51  
  1,333.01 1,679.51  
NOTE NO.18   
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES     
- Interest on unsecured loan 28.61 1.36  
- Deposit (Refundable)Payable 300.00  500.00  
- Other Payable  5.25  5.25  
  333.86 506.61  
NOTE NO.19   
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES     

- Advance From Customers 100.66  100.66  
- Statutory dues towards TDS/VAT/CST/Service Tax/GST etc. (Net) -    -    
  100.66  100.66  

NOTE NO.20   
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS For the year ended  

31 March, 2022 
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021 

- Revenue From Film Production 941.87 78.91  
  941.87 78.91  

NOTE NO.21   
OTHER INCOME     

Interest on bank deposit 0.16 0.02  
Interest on income tax refund 4.56 1.65  
Others 1.60 0.01  
  6.32 1.68  

 
NOTE NO.22 
 COST OF PRODUCTION/ OPERATING EXPENSES 

  

Cost of under production films brought forward 735.91 485.91  
Unamortised cost at the beginning of the year 2,519.33  2,519.33  
Add: Cost incurred during the year 853.28 250.00  
Less: Unamortised cost at the close of the year 2,519.33  2,519.33  
Less: Cost of underproduction films carried forward 799.18 735.91  
  790.00 0.00  
Add: print and publicity 17.71   -    
  807.71 0.00  

NOTE NO.23   
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN 
PROGRESS  

    

Net (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories -    -    

NOTE NO.24   
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES     

-Salaries and wages 30.99  22.24  
  30.99 22.24  
NOTE NO.25   
FINANCE COST     
Interest on Borrowings 32.18 2.17  
  32.18 2.17  
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NOTE NO.26 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES For the year ended  

31 March, 2022 
For the year ended  

31 March, 2021 
 Depreciation and amortisation 1.11 1.13  
  1.11 1.13  
NOTE NO.27   
OTHER EXPENSES     
Rent 12.00  12.00  
Professional tax 0.03  0.03  
Legal and professional fees 6.17  10.69  
Interest paid to others 0.02  4.40  
Listing & others fees 3.00  3.00  
Annual Custodian charges 0.45 0.49  
AGM expenses 0.20 -    
Travelling and conveyance 0.16 -    
Computer repair and maintenance 0.27 -    
Electricity Charges -    -    
Advertisement 1.32 0.21  
Business Promotion 0.20 -    
Service Tax expense - 0.60  
CSR expenses 16.53 16.68  
VAT Expenses - 0.43  
Share transfer agent fees 0.58 0.81  
Website expenses 1.60 -    
Printing & Stationery 0.01 0.24  
ROC Charges 0.28 -    
Audit Fees 2.25 4.95  
Title Registration 0.05  0.05  
Sitting fees 0.11 0.19  
Foreign Exchange Gian/ Loss 1.23 - 
Office expenses 0.14 0.88  

  46.60 55.65  

 
NOTE NO.28         
i) Tax Reconciliation         
  (a) The Income tax expense consists of the following:       
  Particulars     (Rs in Lakhs) 
      Year ended 

31st March, 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2021 
  Current income tax     11.00 3.75  
  Deferred tax expense     (0.59) 0.01  
  Tax expense for the year     10.41 3.76  
            
  (b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income       
  Particulars     (Rs in Lakhs) 
      Year ended 

31st March, 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2021 
  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   -  -  
  Net of tax     -  -  
            
  The reconciliation of estimated income tax expenses at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in 

statement of Profit and loss is as follows: 
  Particulars     (Rs in Lakhs) 
      Year ended 

31st March, 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2021 
            
  Profit before tax     29.60  (0.60) 
  Indian statutory income tax rate     25.168% 25.168% 
  Expected income tax expenses     7.45  (0.15) 
            
  Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected 

income tax expense to reported income tax 
expenses: - 

        

            
  Additional allowances/deductions     -  3.91   

Effect of non-deductible expenses / non 
taxable Income (Net) for the purpose of 
Income Tax 

  
2.96 - 

  Impact of differential tax rate     -  -  
  Total Income Tax expenses     10.41 3.76  
  Effective Tax Rate     35.18% - 
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ii) Deferred Tax Disclosure         
  (a) Movement in deferred tax balances         
  Particulars (Rs in Lakhs) 
  Net balance 

as at 1st April, 
2021 

Recognise
d in profit 

or loss 

Recognised 
in OCI 

Net Deferred 
tax asset as at 

31st March, 
2022 

  Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)         
  Property, plant and equipment 2.42  0.59 -  3.01 
  Other items  (46.62) -  -   (46.62) 
  Tax assets/ (liabilities)  (44.20)  0.59 -   (43.61) 
            
  (b) Movement in deferred tax balances         
  Particulars (Rs in Lakhs) 
  Net balance 

as at 1st April, 
2020 

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss 

Recognised 
in OCI 

Net Deferred 
tax asset as at 

31st March, 
2021 

  Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)         
   Property, plant and equipment  2.43  (0.01)  -  2.42 
   Other items   (46.62) - -   (46.62) 
  Tax assets/ (liabilities)  (44.19) (0.01) -   (44.20) 
            
 The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.  
Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and 
recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income in 
which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered. 

NOTE NO.29 
Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management 
A. Accounting classification and fair values 
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the 
fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if 
the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 
  (Rs. in Lakhs ) 

Financial assets As at 31 March 2022 

Carrying amount Fair value 
Fair value 
through 
profit and 
loss 

Amortised 
Cost 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Cash and cash 
equivalents  
(Including other 
bank balances) 

-  17.48  17.48  -  -  -  -  

Loans -  3.00  3.00  -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
receivables 

-  1,704.76  1,704.76  -  -  -  -  

Other financial assets -  135.12  135.12  -  -  -  -  

TOTAL -  1,860.36  1,860.36  -  -  -  -  

Financial liabilities               
Other financial 
liabilities 

-  333.86  333.86  -  -  -  -  

Borrowings -  866.72  866.72  -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
payables 

                                      
-  

1,333.01  1,333.01  
                              
-  

                           
-  

                           
-  

                              
-  

                

TOTAL -  2,533.59  2,533.59  -  -  -  -  

                
  (Rs. in Lakhs ) 

Financial assets As at 31 March 2021 
Carrying amount Fair value 

Fair value 
through 
profit and 
loss 

Amortised 
Cost 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Cash and cash 
equivalents  
(Including other 
bank balances) 

-  16.71  16.71  -  -  -  -  

Loans -  3.00  3.00  -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
receivables 

-  1,687.60  1,687.60  -  -  -  -  

Other financial assets -  180.04  180.04  -  -  -  -  

TOTAL -  1,887.35  1,887.35  -  -  -  -  



POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 

 

Page | 54 

Financial liabilities               
Other financial 
liabilities 

-  506.61  506.61  -  -  -  -  

Borrowings -  290.50  290.50  -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
payables 

                                      
-  

                             
1,679.51  

                    
1,679.51  

                              
-  

                           
-  

                           
-  

                              
-  

                

TOTAL -  2,476.62  2,476.62  -  -  -  -  

Fair values for financial instruments carried at amortised cost approximates the carrying amount, accordingly the fair values 
of such financial assets and financial liabilities have not been disclosed separately. 
                
B. Measurement of fair values 
Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair 
value in the Balance Sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). 
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 
measurements) and lowest priority to un-observable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Fair value of derivative financial assets and 
liabilities are estimated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevailing market interest rate curves. The three 
levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below: 
Level 1:  Level 1 Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 
Level 2:  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques 
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs 
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 
Level 3:  If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. e.g., 
unlisted equity and debt securities. 
Transfers between Levels   
There have been no transfers between Levels during the reporting periods 
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant 
unobservable inputs used. 
Financial instruments measured at fair value 
Type Valuation technique Significant 

unobservable inputs 
Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable inputs 
and fair value measurement 

Level 3:                                                                                                                         
Unquoted Equity / 
Debt Securities 

At Cost Not applicable Not applicable 

                
There are no transfers between the levels  
                
C. Financial risk management  
                
i. Risk management framework 
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company risk management 
framework. The board of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company risk management policies.  
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate  risk 
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations. 
The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and procedures, 
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is 
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls 
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee. 
Trade and other receivable 
Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes that no provision is required 
for credit risk wherever credit is extended to customers. 

 
NOTE NO. 30         
   Capital Management         
  The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to 

sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to 
ordinary shareholders. 

  The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘equity’. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total debt, comprising 
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and current investments.  

  The Company’s net debt to equity ratio as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021 is as follows. 
  Particulars   (Rs in Lakhs) 
  As at  

31st March, 2022 
As at 31st March, 

2021 
  Current Borrowings     866.72                  290.50  
  Gross Debt                       866.72                  290.50  
  Less - Cash and Cash Equivalents                         17.48                    16.71  
  Less - Current Investments                                -                             -  
  Net debt                       849.24                  273.79  
  Total equity     3,511.19               3,491.99  
  Net debt to Equity ratio     0.24 0.08 
      
 
 

        



 

35TH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

 
 

Page | 55 

NOTE NO.31 
  Earnings Per Share (EPS):         
  Basic EPS and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company 

by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 
      (Rs in Lakhs, Except EPS) 
  Particulars   Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 
Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
  Profit attributable to equity holders (Rs. in Lakhs)   19.20                     (4.36) 
            
  Add:/ (Less): Dividend Tax of Earlier Year     -  - 
          
  Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year               45,33,175              45,33,175  
          
  Nominal Value of Equity Shares                       10.00                     10.00  
      

  

  Earnings Per Share Basic and Diluted                         0.42                     (0.10) 

 
NOTE NO.32                 
  Related Party Disclosures * 
   (Where transactions have taken place) 

I Related Party Relationships 

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Vashu Bhagnani (Director), Puja Bhagnani (Managing Director), 
Deepshikha Deshmukh (Non- Executive Director), Omkar Pathak 
(CFO), Murli Thanvi (Company Secretary & Compliance officer) 

b) Relatives of KMP: Jackky Bhagnani 
c) Other Related Parties -(Enterprises-KMP having 

significant influence/owned by major shareholders) 
Puja Entertainment (India) Limited, Pooja Constructions/ Pooja Film 
Company, Pooja Leisure & Lifestyle, Pooja Devcon Private Limited, 
PVB Developers Private Limited, Beta Properties Private Limited and 
Lilaram Bhagnani Charitable Trust. 

d) The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary -  Modern Productions FZ LLC in UAE. 

 
II Related Party Transactions *        (Rs. in Lakhs) 

  Transactions As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021 

   KMP 
Relatives 

of KMP 

Entities 
under direct 
or indirect 
control or 

substantial 
influence 

Subsidi
ary 

KMP 
Relatives of 

KMP 

Entities 
under 

direct or 
indirect 

control or 
substantial 
influence 

Subsidiary 

                    

  
Short-Term 
Borrowing 
Received 

1,060.22 -  -  -  702.39  -  -  -  

  
Short-Term 
Borrowing 
Repaid 

484.00  - -  -  454.48   - -  -  

  
Film Advance 
Received 

-  - 995.30  -  -  -  - -  

  
Film Advance 
Repaid 

- -  114.56  -  - -   - -  

  Expenses                  
   Rent paid  -    -    12.00  -    -    -    12.00  -    
 CSR Expenses - - 16.53  - - - 16.68 - 

  
Interest on 
Borrowings  

31.79  -    -    -    2.06  -    -    -    

  
Managing 
Director’s 
Remuneration  

7.20  -    -    -    9.60  -    -    -    

  
Director’s 
Sitting Fees  

0.06  -    -    -    0.19  -    -    -    

  Salary Paid  26.69  -    -    -  11.60  -    -    -  
 Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs ) 

 Outstanding Balances As at 31st March, 2022   As at 31st March, 2021 
  Liabilities               
  Short Term Borrowings            
  (i) KMP 866.72 290.50 
  Trade and Other Payables            
  KMP 29.52 3.74 

  
Entities under direct or indirect 
control or substantial influence 

194.08 1,065.65 

 
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
*All the related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in an arm's length transactions. 
*Parties identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors. 
*No amount in respect of related parties have been written off/back or are provided for. 
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NOTE NO.33         
  As at 31st March,2022, the Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 
          Rs.in lakhs 

  Particulars   As at 31st 
March 

2022 

As at 31st 
March 2021 

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year - - 
b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year - - 
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, 

along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

- - 

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006 

- - 

e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - - 
f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 

until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for 
the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED 
Act, 2006  

- - 

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the 
information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation 
received from them on requests made by the Company. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed 
payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any 
earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payment made during the year 
or on balance brought forward from previous year. 

 
Trade Receivables ageing Schedule :       (Rs. in lakhs)  

As at 31st March, 2022 
Particulars Less then 6 

Months 
6 months - 

1 Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More 

Then 3 
Years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

                                
31.15  

                               
-    

                               
-    

                        
900.08  

                    
773.53  

                               
1,704.76  

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(iv) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(v) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(vi) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

              
  As at 31st March, 2021 
Particulars Less then 6 

Months 
6 months - 

1 Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More 

Then 3 
Years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

                                
14.00  

                               
-    

                        
900.08  

                          
62.02  

                    
711.50  

                               
1,687.60  

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(iv) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(v) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(vi) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

 
 
 
 
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule :        (Rs.in lakhs)  

As at 31st March, 2022 
Particulars Less then one 

year  
 1-2 Years   2-3 Years  More Than 3 

Years 
 Total  

(i) MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(ii) Others 637.42  0.05  35.38  660.16  1,333.01  
(iii) Disputed dues -MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(iv) Disputed dues- Others -    -    -    -    -    
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  As at 31st March, 2021 
Particulars Less then one 

year  
 1-2 Years   2-3 Years  More Than 3 

Years 
 Total  

(i) MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(ii) Others 5.91  18.14  11.07  1,644.39  1,679.51  
(iii) Disputed dues -MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(iv) Disputed dues- Others -    -    -    -    -    

 
 
NOTE NO.34         
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 
Particulars     Rs.in lakhs 

    As at  
31st March 

2022 

As at  
31st March 

2021 
(i) Contingent Liabilities         
a) Guarantees given by the Company's bankers on 

behalf of the Company for the Company 
    -  -  

b) other money for which the Company is contingently liable:         
  MVAT / CST (See Note  34.1)     53.57 21.61  
(ii) Commitments         
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on capital account and not provided 
for 

    -  -  

b) Uncalled liability on shares and other 
investments partly paid 

    -  -  

c)  Other commitments     -  -  
        

  

  Total     53.57 21.61  
            
34.1  The figure of Rs 53.57 Lakhs is towards to VAT Demand for the period 2012-13 and 2013-14 raised as per the Assessment 

Orders issued by the Dy. Comm. Of Sales Tax. The same is pending before appeals as at 31st March 2022. 
The figure of Rs. 21.61 lakhs for FY 2012-13 is as per the order dated May 9, 2017 of the Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax, 
Mumbai. Thereafter, the Company had preferred an appeal before the Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax as at 31st March 2021. 

 
NOTE NO.35         
Payment to Auditors          

Particulars     Rs.in lakhs 
    Year ended 31st 

March 2022 
Year ended 31st 

March 2021 

Statutory Auditors         
 - Audit Fees     2.25 2.00  
 - For Tax Audit     - 1.25  
 - For Taxation Matters     -  -  
-For Quarterly-Limited Review     0.50  1.50  
 - For Other services - Certification, etc.     0.20  0.20  
Total     2.95  4.95  

 
NOTE NO.36         
 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activity:      (Rs. in lakhs)  
Sr. 
No. 

PARTICULARS   Year ended 31st 
March,2022 

Year ended 
31st 

March,2021 
1 Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year   16.53 16.68 
2 Amount of expenditure incurred on   

  

  i) Construction/acquisition of any assets   - - 
  ii) On purpose of other than (i) above   16.53 16.68 
3 Shortfall at the end of the year    - - 
4 Total of Previous year shortfall   - - 
5 Reason for shortfall   NA NA 
6 Nature of CSR activities   Education and Health 
7 Details of related party transactions in  relation to CSR  expenditure as 

per relevant Accounting Standard : 
  Donation paid to Lilaram Bhagnani Charitable 

Trust, a related party in relation to CSR 
expenditure 

8 Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation 

  -    -    

 
In terms of Amendment to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021 (the CSR Rules 2021”) effective 
from 22nd January, 2021, if a company fails to spend the prescribed CSR amount during the year and such unspent amount pertains to 
any ongoing project, the company shall transfer the unspent amount to a special bank account to be opened by the company in that 
behalf for that financial year in any scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account within a period of 
30 days from the end of the relevant financial year.  the Company does not have any unspent CSR amount as on 31st March, 2022. 

 
NOTE NO.37         
  OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION :         
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 

for holding any Benami property. 
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(ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 
(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 
(iv) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 

authority. 
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall : 
  (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
  (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(viii) The Company has not granted Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties. 
(ix) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the 

lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant 
and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(x) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off except the following:  

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the struck off company 
Nature of 

transactions 

Balance outstanding  
(Rs.in lakhs) 

Relationship 
with the struck 
off company, if 

any, to be 
disclosed 

As at March 
31, 2022 

As at March 31, 
2021 

1 Magnolia Farms Pvt Ltd 
Shares held by 

Stuck off 
Company 

- - Shareholder 

            

  
Details of other struck off entities holding equity shares in the 
Company is as below: 

  (Rs.in lakhs)   

  
Name of struck off Company   

 No. of shares 
held  

 Paid-up as at 
March 31, 
2022  

 Paid-up as at 
March 31, 
2021  

  

    

  Magnolia Farms Pvt Ltd 
                           
1,25,000  

                         
12.50  

                      
12.50  

  

 
NOTE NO.38  
KEY RATIOS :  

        

  
 

            
Sr. 
No
. 

Particulars Numerator Denominato
r 

Year ended 
31st March 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March 
2021 

Varianc
e (%) 

Remarks for variance 
more than 25% 

1 Current Ratio (In 
times) 

Current Assets Current 
Liabilities 

2.25  2.26  -0.50%   

2 Debt-Equity Ratio 
(In times) 

Total Debt Shareholder’
s Equity 

0.25  0.08  196.72% Higher ratio on account of 
acceptance of loan for 
working capital 
requirement  

3 Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio (In 
times) 

Earnings 
available for 
debt service  

Debt Service 0.10  (0.00) -
4333.42
% 

 Due to Increase in 
Earnings available for debt 
service  

4 Return on Equity 
(ROE) (%)  

Net Profits 
after taxes 

Average 
Shareholder’
s Equity 

0.55% -0.12% -
539.54% 

 Due to Increase in profit 
after tax   

5 Inventory 
Turnover (In 
times)  

Cost of goods 
sold  

Average 
Inventories 

0.25  0.00  24.57%   

6 Trade receivables 
Turnover (In 
times) 

Net Sales Average 
Trade 
Receivables 

0.56  0.03  1960.18
% 

 Due to Increase in sales 
and Decrease in average 
trade receivables  

7 Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio (In 
times) 

Total 
Purchases 

Average 
Trade 
Payables 

0.62  0.12  426.81%  Due to Increase in 
purchases and Decrease in 
average trade payables  

8 Net capital 
turnover ratio (In 
times) 

Net Sales Working 
Capital 

0.29  0.02  1078.31
% 

 Due to Increase in sales  

9 Net profit ratio 
(%) 

Net Profit Net Sales 2.04% -5.52% -
136.90% 

 Due to Increase in profit 
after tax and Increase in 
sales  

10 Return on capital 
employed (ROCE) 
(%) 

Earning before 
interest and 
taxes 

Capital 
Employed  

1.40% 0.04% 3319.00
% 

 Due to Increase in earning 
before interest & taxes and 
Increase in total debt  
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Note: During the current & previous year, the company has not made any investment in the securities. Accordingly, ratio for Return on 
investment has not been presented. 
 
NOTE NO.39 

Pursuant to outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) worldwide and its declaration as global pandemic, the Government of India 
declared lockdown on March 24, 2020, followed by several restrictions imposed by the Governments across the globe on the travel, 
goods movement and transportation considering public health and safety measures. The Company is closely monitoring the impact of the 
pandemic on all aspects of its business. The management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgments and 
estimates, inter-alia, recoverability of receivables, inventory, based on the information available to date, both internal and external, while 
preparing the Company’s financial results as of and for the year ended and quarter ended 31st March, 2022. 
 
NOTE NO.40 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's 
classification/disclosure. 

 
 
As per our report of even date.     
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W) Puja V. Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
 Managing Director Director 
Dilip J. Thakkar DIN: 00044593 DIN: 02146210 
Partner   
Membership No.005369   
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer Company Secretary 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

POOJA ENTERTAINMENT AND FILMS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise 

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st March, 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the consolidated statement of  changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 

to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 

(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 
2022, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year 

then ended. 
 

Basis for Opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 

under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(‘ICAI’), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Emphasis of Matter 

 

We draw attention to Note No.39 of the accompanying financial results, which describes the management's evaluation of impact of 
uncertainties related to COVID-I9 and its consequential effects on the operations of the Company. 

 
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 
Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 

Revenue recognition 
The Company’s profit / (loss) is dependent on proper accounting of Revenue and is therefore susceptible to misstatement. Cut-off is the 

key assertion in so far as revenue recognition is concerned, since an inappropriate cut-off can result in material misstatement of results for 
the year. 

 

Auditor’s response 
Our audit procedures with regard to revenue recognition included testing controls, automated and manual, inventory reconciliations and 

assessing the recoverability of trade receivable balances, substantive testing for cut-offs and analytical review procedures. 
 

Other Information 
 

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report 

thereon. 

 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to 

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated 
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profit/loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 

Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each entity and for preventing and detecting 

frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the entities included in 

the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each entity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.   

 
The respective Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each 

entity. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also: 

 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the entity has 

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated 

financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group (Holding company 

and subsidiaries) to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 
 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities within the 

Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial information of such entities. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 
Other Matters 

 

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries, whose financial results include total assets of Rs. 1856.84 
lakhs, total revenue of Rs. 1511.28 lakhs, total net profit after tax of Rs. 260.57 lakhs, total comprehensive income of                  

Rs. 272.67 lakhs and net cash outflows of Rs. 8.42 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements. These financial statements have been certified by the management and our opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our 
report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based 

solely on the financial statements certified by the management. 
 

(b) Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not 

modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the financial statements certified by 
the management. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 

for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

 
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 

statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company, as on 31st March, 2022 and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of respective companies, none of the directors of the Holding Company is disqualified 

as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A. 

 

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16)    of the Act, as amended: 
 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company 
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to 

any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. Further the only Indian Subsidiary has not paid 
any remuneration to its directors during the current year. 

 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with  Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March, 2022 on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group.  
 

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses; and  

 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company during the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

 
iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have 

represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in 
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
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whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

 
 (b) The respective Managements of the Company, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have 

represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in 
the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

 

 (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances performed 
by us on the Company whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice 

that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) 
and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

 
v. The Company did not declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with section 123 of the Act is 

not applicable. 
 

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies      (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the 

“Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s 
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company 

and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is 
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.  

FOR JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO. 

        Chartered Accountants 

   (Firm Reg. No. 104133W) 
PLACE:  Mumbai 

DATE:   30th May, 2022 

     DILIP J.THAKKAR 

    Partner 
   Membership No.005369 

       UDIN: 22005369AJXOCR9618 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report  

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2022, we 
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Pooja Entertainment and Films 

 Limited (“the Company”) as of that date.  
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.  
 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company, based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects.  
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error.  
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.   

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 

or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements.  
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
 

Opinion  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company, have, in all material 

respects, an internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as at 31st March, 2022, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  

.FOR JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO. 
        Chartered Accountants 

   (Firm Reg. No. 104133W) 

PLACE:  Mumbai 

DATE:   30th May, 2022 
     DILIP J.THAKKAR 

    Partner 

   Membership No.005369 

       UDIN: 22005369AJXOCR9618 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS ON MARCH 31, 2022(Rs. In lakhs) 
PARTICULARS Note No.  As at March 31, 

 2022 
 As at March 31, 

 2021 

I ASSETS       

1 NON-CURRENT ASSETS       

    (a)  Property, Plant and equipment  3 3.63 4.75  

    (b) Financial Assets 
 

    

         (i) Investments 
 

-    -    
        (ii)Other Financial Assets 4 20.11 6.51  

    (c) Income Tax Assets (net) 5 113.06 149.00  

    Total Non-Current Assets 
 

136.80  160.26  

2 CURRENT ASSETS 
 

    

    (a)  Inventories 6 3,318.52 3,255.24  

    (b)  Financial Assets 
 

    

       (i)  Trade Receivables 7 3,177.63 2,063.35  

      (ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 27.55 18.36  

      (iii)  Loans 9 505.46 62.59  

      (iv)  Other Financial Assets 10 115.01 173.53  

    (c) Other current assets 11 764.92 688.57  

    TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 
 

7,909.09 6,261.64  

    TOTAL ASSETS  
 

8,045.89 6,421.90  

II  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 

    

  Equity 
 

    

     (a) Share Capital 12 453.32  453.32  

     (b) Other Equity 13 3,453.60 3,161.73  

    TOTAL EQUITY 
 

3,906.92 3,615.05  

  Liabilities 
 

    

1 NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES 
 

    

     (a)Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 43.61 44.20  

    TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES 
 

43.61 44.20  

2 CURRENT LIABLITIES 
 

    

    (a) Financial Liabilities 
 

    

       (i) Borrowings 15 866.72 290.50  

       (ii) Trade Payables 16     

     - Due to Micro & Small Enterprises 
 

-    -    

     - Due to Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 
 

2,794.12 1,864.88  

       (iii)Other financial liabilities 17 333.86 506.61  

    (b) Other current liabilities 18 100.66  100.66  

    TOTAL CURRENT LIABLITIES   4,095.36 2,762.65  

    TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   8,045.89 6,421.90  

 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 1 to 36 
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements   
    

 
      

As per our report of even date.        
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
 Chartered Accountants       
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W)       
            
Dilip J. Thakkar  Puja Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
Partner  Managing Director   Director  
Membership No.005369  DIN: 00044593   DIN: 02146210  

 
 
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 

Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer  Company Secretary  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022(Rs. In lakhs) 
PARTICULARS Note 

No. 
 As at March 

31, 2022 
 As at March 31, 

 2021 

  
  

      
 I Revenue from operations 19 2,452.01 298.20  

 II Other Income 20 7.46 1.68  

 III Total Revenue (I+II) 
 

2,459.47 299.88  

  
  

    

 IV Expenses: 
 

    

  Cost of production and Distribution of films 21 1,960.85 -    

  Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-
progress 

22 -    -    

  Employee benefits expense 23 128.13 119.11  

  Finance Cost 24 32.18 2.17  

  Depreciation and other amortisation expense 25 1.11 1.13  

  Other Expenses 26 47.02 111.64  

  Total Expenses 
 

2,169.29 234.05  

  
  

    

 V Profit before tax ((III-IV) 
 

290.18 65.83  

  Add: Exceptional Item 
 

-    -    

  (Loss)/Profit after Exceptional Item 
 

290.18 65.83  

  
  

    

 VI Tax expense: 
 

    

  
 

- Current tax 
 

11.00 3.75 

  
 

- Deferred tax (Credit)/Charge 
 

(0.59) 0.01 

  
 

-Income Tax related to earlier years 
 

0.00 - 

 VII (Loss)/Profit after Tax (V-VI) 
 

279.77 62.07  

  
   

    

  
   

    

 VIII  Other comprehensive Income (OCI) 
 

    

  
 

items that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss 
 

12.10  (5.71) 

  
 

items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss 
 

-    -    

  
 

Total comprehensive income for the period (VII + VIII) 
 

291.87 56.36  

  
   

    

 IX Earnings per equity share: 
 

    

  
 

Basic and diluted 32 6.17 1.37  

 
 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 1 to 36 
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.   
            
As per our report of even date.        
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
 Chartered Accountants       
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W)       
            
Dilip J. Thakkar  Puja Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
Partner  Managing Director   Director  
Membership No.005369  DIN: 00044593   DIN: 02146210  

 
 
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 

Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer  Company Secretary  
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 (Rs. In lakhs) 
Particulars   For the year 

ended  
March 31, 2022 

 For the year 
ended  

March 31, 2021  
 A. Cash flow from operating activities      

      Profit before tax  290.18 65.83  

 Adjustments for:      
 Depreciation  1.11                    1.13  
 Finance Costs  32.18 2.17  
 Interest income  (4.72)  (1.67) 
 Unrealised Foreign exchange (gain)/loss  12.10                   (5.71) 

     On acquisition of subsidiary                         -                           -    

 Operating profit before working capital changes  330.85 61.75  

 Changes in working capital:      

 Adjustments for operating assets:      

 Decrease/(Increase) in inventories  (63.29)               (250.00) 

 Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables  (1,114.28)             2,314.71  

 Decrease/(Increase) in Loans, Other Financial Assets and Other current 
Assets  

(474.27)                 (96.39) 

 Adjustments for operating liabilities:      

 (Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, Other current liabilities and other 
financial Liabilities  

756.49            (2,305.16) 

  Cash used in operating activities  (895.34)  (336.84) 

 Direct Taxes and Income Tax Assets (Net)  24.93 17.50  

  Net cash flow inflow/(Outflow) used in operating activities (A)  (539.57)  (257.59) 
 B. Cash flow from investing activities      
     Interest received  4.72 1.67  
  Net cash flow from investing activities (B)  4.72  1.67  

 C. Cash flow from financing activities      

    Proceeds/(Repayment) from short -term borrowings (Net)  576.22 242.67  
 Finance Costs  (32.18)  (2.17) 
  Net cash flow (Outflow)/inflow from financing activities (C)  544.04 240.50  
  Net (decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  9.19  (15.42) 

   Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  18.36  33.78  

   Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  27.55  18.36 

 Cash and cash equivalent comprises of:     

 Cash in hand  1.39 1.39  

 Balance with scheduled banks in:      

 Current account  26.16 16.97  

 Total  27.55 18.36  
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 
 
As per our report of even date.        
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
 Chartered Accountants       
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W)       
            
Dilip J. Thakkar  Puja Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
Partner  Managing Director   Director  
Membership No.005369  DIN: 00044593   DIN: 02146210  
 
 
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 

Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer  Company Secretary  
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022 
 
(a) Equity share capital 

  
No. of Shares (Rs. in Lakhs) 

  

Balance as at 1st April 2020 50,00,500 453.32  

Changes in equity share capital -    -    

Balance as at 31 March 2021 50,00,500 453.32  

Changes in equity share capital -    -    

Balance as at 31 March 2022 50,00,500 453.32  

     

(b) Other Equity 
    

Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Reserves and Surplus Statement of other 
comprehensive 

Income 

Total other 
equity 

General 
Reserve 

Retained 
earnings 

Foreign Currency 
Translation 

reserve 
 Balance as at 1st April 2020 7.88  3,086.23  11.26 3,105.37 

  
  

    
 Total Comprehensive          

 Profit for the year  -    62.07 (5.71) 56.36 

 Transferred to General Reserve  - - - - 

 Balance as at 31st March 2021 7.88  3,148.30  5.55 3,161.72 

        

 Total Comprehensive          
 Profit for the year  -    279.77 12.10 291.89 

 Transferred to General Reserve  -    -    -    -    

 Balance as at 31st March 2022 7.88  3,428.07 17.65 3,453.60 

 
 
As per our report of even date.     
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants   
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W) Puja V. Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
 Managing Director Director 
Dilip J. Thakkar DIN: 00044593 DIN: 02146210 
Partner   
Membership No.005369   
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 
Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer Company Secretary 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022     
          
NOTE - 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION       
  Pooja Entertainment and Films Limited ("the Company" or "PEFL") is engaged in film production and other related 

activities. The company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office at 
Pooja House, 1st Floor, CTS No. 892-893, Opp. J.W. Marriott Hotel, Juhu Tara Road, Juhu, Mumbai - 400049. 

          
NOTE - 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES       
          
2.01 Basis of preparation of financial statements       
  a) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] 
and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
b) Basis of consolidation 
Subsidiary is an entity over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or 
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 
The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiary line by line adding together like items of 
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions 
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence 
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiary have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the group. 
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiary is shown separately in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively. 
Name of the Subsidiary Company   - Morden Production FZ LLC (100% subsidiary) 
Country of Incorporation - United Arab Emirates 
c) Foreign currency translation 
'Functional and presentation currency: 
Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are 
presented in Indian rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency. 
Transactions and balances: 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally 
recognised in profit and loss. 
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported 
as part of the fair value gain or loss. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value 
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences 
on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or profit and loss, 
respectively). 

          
2.02 Use of estimates       
  The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to 

make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent 
liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The management believes that the estimates used in 
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future results could differ due to these estimates and 
the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known 
/ materialise. Significant estimates used by the management in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements 
include, classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current, estimates of the economic useful lives of fixed 
assets,. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively. 

2.03 Tangible Fixed Assets - Property Plant and Equipment     
  Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises of the purchase price and any 

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.  
          
2.04 Inventories       
  Inventory comprises of unamortised cost of films and cost incurred till date for under production films. The cost of films is 

amortised in the ratio of current revenue to expected total revenue. At the end of each accounting period, balance 
unamortised cost is compared with net expected revenue. If net expected revenue is less than unamortised cost, the same 
is written down to net expected revenue. 

  Expenses of under production films incurred till the films are ready for release are inventorised. 
  

 

2.05 Investments:       
  All long term investments are valued at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of each long term investment is made to 

recognise a decline other than a temporary nature. Current Investments are carried individually at lower of cost or fair 
value and the resultant decline is charged to the revenue.                                                                                                                

          
2.06 Revenue Recognition       
  The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers with effect from 1st April 2018. 
  Film production and related income       
  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue from production of movie is 

recognized on assignment/ sale of the rights in the concerned movie from the date of their availability for exploitation or 
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on the date of release of the movie and in some other cases as per the terms of movie production agreements entered into 
with the customer, as applicable. 
 
Revenue from other rights in the movie such as satellite rights, overseas rights, music rights, video rights, etc., is 
recognized on assignment/ sale of the rights in the concerned movie from the date of their availability for exploitation, as 
applicable. 

          
  Interest income       
  Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis.       
          
2.07 Depreciation:       
  Depreciation on Tangible fixed assets are provided for in accordance with schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on addition/deduction during the year has been provided on Pro-rata basis.  
          
2.08 Taxation       
  Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the 

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Provision for current income tax is made on current tax rate based on assessable 
income computed under Income Tax Act 1961 or  Book profit is computed under section 115JB (MAT) whichever is 
higher. MAT credit is recognised subject to requirement of virtual certainity that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available for set off. 

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for future tax consequences attributable to the timing differences 
between taxable income and accounting income that are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and are 
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred Tax assets are not 
recognized unless, in the management judgment, there is virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying amount of deferred tax is reviewed at each 
balance sheet date. 

          
2.09 Earning Per Share:       
  Earning Per Share is  calculated  by dividing the net profit or loss for the  period  attributable  to  equity shareholders by 

the weighted average number of the equity shares outstanding during the period. 
          
2.10 Impairment of Tangible assets       
          
  Carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment.  An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying amount of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An 
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit & loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The 
impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of 
recoverable amount.  

          
2.11 Provisions and contingencies       
          
  A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. 
Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates.  

  Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence is 
confirmed by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the company. 

          
2.12 Rounding of amounts       
  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs (upto 2 decimal)as 

per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated. 
    
2.13 Standards issued or modified but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the company’s financial 

statements: 
  Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below: 

          
  Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework       
  The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets 

acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for 
Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. 
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

          
  Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use       
  The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts 

received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will 
recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have 
any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements. 

           
  Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract       
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  The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. 
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a 
clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

          
  Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)       
  The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing 

whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact 
in its financial statements. 

          
  Ind AS 116 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)       
  The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to 

resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease 
incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statements. 

 
NOTE NO.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS AT 31ST MARCH 2022(Rs. In lakhs)  

    GROSS BLOCK (AT COST) DEPRECIATION (INCLUDING 
AMORTISATION) 

NET BLOCK 

 
Property, 
Plant and 
Equipment 

Balance As 
at 

01.04.2021 

Additions/
Adjustmen
ts During 
the year# 

Deductions/Ad
justments 
During the 

year# 

Balanc
e As at 
31.03.
2022 

Total 
upto 

31.03.20
21 

*For 
the 

Year 

Deductio
ns 

During 
the year 

Total 
upto 

31.03.
2022 

As At 
31.03.2

022 

As At 
31.03.20

21 

                        

  
Tangible 
Assets: 

                    

  
Plant and 
Equipment 

9.52 - - 9.52 4.90 1.01 - 5.92 3.60 4.62 

  
Office 
Equipment 

0.77 - - 0.77 0.64 0.10 - 0.74 0.03 0.13 

 Computer 2.98 - - 2.98 2.98 - - 2.98 - - 

    
          

 
TOTAL 
PROPERTY , 
PLANT AND 
EQUPMENT 

13.26 - - 13.26 8.52 1.11 - 9.63 3.63 4.75 

   (Rs. In Lakhs)  
Particulars As at March 31, 

 2022 
As at March 31, 

 2021 

NOTE NO.4 : OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS     
  Other advances - Security Deposits 20.11 6.51  

    20.11 6.51  
NOTE NO.5 : INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)     

  - Advance Payments of Taxes and Tax deducted at source (Net of 
Provisions) 

113.06 149.00  

    113.06 149.00  

NOTE NO.6 : INVENTORIES       

  Copyrights 114.76  114.76  

  Cost of films under production 684.43 621.15  

  Unamortised cost of production 2,519.33  2,519.33  

    3,318.52 3,255.24  

NOTE NO.7 : TRADE RECEIVABLES     

   Unsecured Considered good 3.177.63 2,063.35 

  Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -    -    

  Trade receivables - credit impaired -    -    

    3,177.63 2063.35 

NOTE NO.8 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS     

  -Balances with banks in current account 26.16 16.97 

  -Cash on hand 1.39  1.39  

    27.55 18.36 
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NOTE NO.9: LOANS     

  -Loans and advances 505.46 62.59 
    505.46 62.59 
NOTE NO.10: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 

 
  

  -Interest Receivables 115.01 173.53  

    115.01 173.53  

NOTE NO.11 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 

- Advance payment for Film Projects 688.08 646.23  

  - Statutory dues towards TDS/VAT/CST/Service Tax/GST etc. (Net) 76.84 42.34  

    764.92 688.57  

NOTE NO. 12 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
 

(Rs. In Lakhs)  
Share Capital      As at March 

31, 
 2022 

 As at 
March 31, 

 2021   
           
Authorised      
3,00,00,000/- Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 3,000.00  3,000.00   
           
Issued          
50,00,500/- Equity Shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights 500.05  500.05   
           
Subscribed &paid-up          
50,00,500/- Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each with voting 
rights fully called up 

    500.05  500.05  

 
Less: Calls in Arrears     46.73  46.73   
           
Total     453.32  453.32       

  

13.1 Reconciliation of number of Shares outstanding at the 
beginning and end of the year   

    

 
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21  

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs)  

Equity Shares:          
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year – Fully 
paid 

43,77,400 437.74 43,77,400 437.74 

 
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year – Partly 
paid 

6,23,100 15.58 6,23,100 15.58 

 
Total at the beginning of the year 50,00,500 453.32 50,00,500 453.32  
Shares outstanding at the end of the year – Fully paid 43,77,400 437.74 43,77,400 437.74  
Shares outstanding at the end of the year – Partly paid 6,23,100 15.58 6,23,100 15.58  
Total at the end of the year 50,00,500 453.32 50,00,500 453.32       

13.2 Shareholders holding more than 5% of the Share Capital 
    

 
Name of Shareholder  As at March 

31, 2022 
As at 

March 31, 
2021  

Equity Shares:      
Vashu Bhagnani 24,44,370  24,44,370   
% Holding  48.88  48.88   
Puja Bhagnani 2,52,519  2,52,519   
% Holding  5.05  5.05   
Jackky Bhagnani 7,13,940 6,73,940   
% Holding  14.28 13.48        

13.3 Shares held by promoters at the end 
of the year 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 % Change 
during the 

year 

 

Particulars No. of shares 
% of total 
shares 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares  

Vashu Bhagnani 24,44,370  48.88% 24,44,370  48.88% 0.00%  
Puja Bhagnani 2,52,519  5.05% 2,52,519  5.05% 0.00%  
Jacky Bhagnani 7,13,940  14.28% 6,73,940  13.48% 0.80%  
Deepshikha Deshmukh 2,43,988  4.88% 2,43,988  4.88% 0.00%  
Total 36,54,817  73.09% 36,14,817  72.29% 0.80%       

13.4 Details of Unpaid Call 
    

 
Particulars As At March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021  

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs) 

Number (Rs. In 
Lakhs)  

           
By Others 6,23,100  46.73  6,23,100  46.73   
  6,23,100  46.73  6,23,100  46.73        

13.5 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to 
receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 
to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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NOTE NO.13 As at March 31, 
 2022 

As at March 31, 
 2021 

OTHER EQUITY     
a. General Reserves     
Opening Balance 7.88  7.88  
Add: Addition during the year  -    -    
Closing Balance 7.88  7.88  
b. Surplus     
Opening Balance 3148.30 3086.23 
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year 279.77 62.07 
      
Closing Balance 3428.07 3148.30 
c. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
Foreign Currency translation reserve 
Opening Balance 
Movement during the year 
Closing Balance  

-   
 

5.55 
12.10 
17.65 

- 
 

11.26 
(5.71) 

5.55  
Closing Balance 3453.60 3161.73 

NOTE NO.14   
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)     

Net Deferred Tax Liability 43.61 44.20  
  43.61 44.20  

NOTE NO.15     
 BORROWINGS- CURRENT      

 - Current account with bank -    1.65 
Loans repayable on demand     
      - from Related Parties 866.72 290.50  
  866.72 292.15 

NOTE NO.16   
TRADE PAYABLE     
 - Due to Micro & Small Enterprises -    -    
 - Due to Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 2,794.12 1,864.86 
  2,794.12 1,864.86 

NOTE NO.17   
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES     

- Interest on unsecured loan 28.61 1.36  
- Deposit (Refundable)Payable 300.00  500.00  
- Other Payable  5.25  5.25  
  333.86 506.61  

NOTE NO.18   
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES     

- Advance From Customers 100.66  100.66  
- Statutory dues towards TDS/VAT/CST/Service Tax/GST etc. (Net) -    -    
  100.66  100.66  
NOTE NO.19   
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 
Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 

- Revenue From Film Production 2,452.01 298.20 
  2,452.01 298.20 

NOTE NO.20   
OTHER INCOME     
Interest on bank deposit 0.16 0.02  
Interest on income tax refund 
Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 

4.56 
1.14 

1.65  

Others 1.60 0.01  
  7.46 1.68  

NOTE NO.21 
 COST OF PRODUCTION/ OPERATING EXPENSES 

  

Cost of under production films brought forward 735.91 485.91  
Unamortised cost at the beginning of the year 2,519.33  2,519.33  
Add: Cost incurred during the year 2,006.41 250.00  
Less: Unamortised cost at the close of the year 2,519.33  2,519.33  
Less: Cost of underproduction films carried forward 799.18 735.91  
  1,943.14 0.00  
Add: print and publicity 17.71   -    
  1,960.85 0.00  

 
NOTE NO.22 

  

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS      

Net (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories -    -    

 
NOTE NO.23 

  

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES     
-Salaries and wages 128.13 119.11 
  128.13 119.11 
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NOTE NO.24 
FINANCE COST Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 
Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
Interest on Borrowings 32.18 2.17  
  32.18 2.17  
NOTE NO.25   
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES   
 Depreciation and amortisation 1.11 1.13  
  1.11 1.13  
NOTE NO.26   
OTHER EXPENSES     

Brokerage and Commission 
Rent 

- 
12.00  

46.21 
12.00  

Professional tax 0.03  0.03  
Legal and professional fees 6.17  10.69  
Interest paid to others 0.02  4.40  
Listing & others fees 3.00  3.00  
Annual Custodian charges 0.45 0.49  
AGM expenses 0.20 -    
Travelling and conveyance 0.16 -    
Computer repair and maintenance 0.27 -    
Electricity Charges -    -    
Advertisement 1.32 0.21  
Business Promotion 0.20 -    
Service Tax expense - 0.60  
CSR expenses 16.53 16.68  
VAT Expenses - 0.43  
Share transfer agent fees 0.58 0.81  
Website expenses 1.60 -    
Printing & Stationery 0.01 0.24  
ROC Charges 0.28 -    
Audit Fees 2.25 4.95  
Title Registration 0.05  0.05  
Sitting fees 0.11 0.19  
Office expenses 1.80 10.66 

  47.02 111.64 

 
NOTE NO.27         
i) Tax Reconciliation         
  (a) The Income tax expense consists of the following:       
  Particulars     (Rs in Lakhs) 
      Year ended 

31st March, 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2021 
  Current income tax     11.00 3.75  
  Deferred tax expense     (0.59) 0.01  
  Tax expense for the year     10.41 3.76  
            
  (b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income       
  Particulars     (Rs in Lakhs) 
      Year ended 

31st March, 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2021 
  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   12.10 (5.71) 
  Net of tax     12.10 (5.71) 
            
  The reconciliation of estimated income tax expenses at statutory income tax rate to income tax expense reported in 

statement of Profit and loss is as follows: 
  Particulars     (Rs in Lakhs) 
      Year ended 

31st March, 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March, 

2021 
            
  Profit before tax     298.10 65.83 
  Indian statutory income tax rate     25.168% 25.168% 
  Expected income tax expenses     73.03 16.57 
  Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected 

income tax expense to reported income tax 
expenses: - 

        

  Additional allowances/deductions     -  (12.81)  
Effect of non-deductible expenses / non 
taxable Income (Net) for the purpose of 
Income Tax 

  
(62.62) - 

  Impact of differential tax rate     -  -  
  Total Income Tax expenses     10.41 3.76  
  Effective Tax Rate     3.59% 5.71% 
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ii) Deferred Tax Disclosure         
  (a) Movement in deferred tax balances         
  Particulars (Rs in Lakhs) 
  Net balance 

as at 1st April, 
2021 

Recognise
d in profit 

or loss 

Recognised 
in OCI 

Net Deferred 
tax asset as at 

31st March, 
2022 

  Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)         
  Property, plant and equipment 2.42   0.59 -  3.01  
  Other items  (46.62) -  -   (46.62) 
  Tax assets/ (liabilities)  (44.20)  0.59 -   (43.61) 
            
  (b) Movement in deferred tax balances         
  Particulars (Rs in Lakhs) 
  Net balance 

as at 1st April, 
2020 

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss 

Recognised 
in OCI 

Net Deferred 
tax asset as at 

31st March, 
2021 

  Deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)         
   Property, plant and equipment  2.43  (0.01)  -  2.42 
   Other items   (46.62) - -   (46.62) 
  Tax assets/ (liabilities)  (44.19) (0.01) -   (44.20) 
            
The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.  
Significant management judgement is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and 
recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income in 
which the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered. 

NOTE NO.28 
Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management 
A. Accounting classification and fair values 
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the 
fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if 
the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 
  (Rs. in Lakhs ) 
Financial assets As at 31 March 2022 

Carrying amount Fair value 
Fair value 
through 
profit and 
loss 

Amortised 
Cost 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Cash and cash 
equivalents  
(Including other 
bank balances) 

-  27.55 27.55 -  -  -  -  

Loans -  505.46 505.46 -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
receivables 

-  3,177.63 3,177.63 -  -  -  -  

Other financial assets -  135.12  135.12  -  -  -  -  
TOTAL -  3,845.76 3,845.76 -  -  -  -  
Financial liabilities               
Other financial 
liabilities 

-  333.86  333.86  -  -  -  -  

Borrowings -  866.72  866.72  -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
payables 

                                      
-  

2,794.12 2,794.12 
                              
-  

                           
-  

                           
-  

                              
-  

                
TOTAL -  3,994.70 3,994.70 -  -  -  -  
  (Rs. in Lakhs ) 
Financial assets As at 31 March 2021 

Carrying amount Fair value 
Fair value 
through 
profit and 
loss 

Amortised 
Cost 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Cash and cash 
equivalents  
(Including other 
bank balances) 

-  18.36 18.36 -  -  -  -  

Loans -  62.59 62.59 -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
receivables 

-  2,063.35 2,063.35 -  -  -  -  

Other financial assets -  180.04  180.04  -  -  -  -  
TOTAL -  2,324.34 2,324.34 -  -  -  -  
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Financial liabilities               
Other financial 
liabilities 

-  506.61  506.61  -  -  -  -  

Borrowings -  290.50  290.50  -  -  -  -  
Trade and other 
payables 

                                      
-  

1864.88 1864.88 
                              
-  

                           
-  

                           
-  

                              
-  

                
TOTAL -  2,661.99 2,661.99 -  -  -  -  
Fair values for financial instruments carried at amortised cost approximates the carrying amount, accordingly the fair values 
of such financial assets and financial liabilities have not been disclosed separately. 
                
B. Measurement of fair values 
Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair 
value in the Balance Sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). 
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 
measurements) and lowest priority to un-observable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Fair value of derivative financial assets and 
liabilities are estimated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevailing market interest rate curves. The three 
levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below: 
Level 1:  Level 1 Hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 
Level 2:  The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques 
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs 
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 
Level 3:  If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. e.g., 
unlisted equity and debt securities. 
Transfers between Levels   
There have been no transfers between Levels during the reporting periods 
The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant 
unobservable inputs used. 
Financial instruments measured at fair value 
Type Valuation technique Significant 

unobservable inputs 
Inter-relationship between 
significant unobservable inputs 
and fair value measurement 

Level 3:                                                                                                                         
Unquoted Equity / 
Debt Securities 

At Cost Not applicable Not applicable 

                
There are no transfers between the levels  
                
C. Financial risk management  
                
i. Risk management framework 
The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company risk management 
framework. The board of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company risk management policies.  
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate  risk 
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations. 
The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and procedures, 
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is 
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls 
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee. 
Trade and other receivable 
Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes that no provision is required 
for credit risk wherever credit is extended to customers. 

 
 
NOTE NO. 29         
   Capital Management         
  The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to 

sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to 
ordinary shareholders. 

  The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘net debt’ to ‘equity’. For this purpose, net debt is defined as total debt, comprising 
loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and current investments.  

  The Company’s net debt to equity ratio as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021 is as follows. 
  Particulars   (Rs in Lakhs) 
  As at  

31st March, 2022 
As at 31st March, 

2021 
  Current Borrowings     866.72                  290.50  
  Gross Debt                       866.72                  290.50  
  Less - Cash and Cash Equivalents     27.55 18.36 
  Less - Current Investments                                -                             -  
  Net debt     839.17 272.14 
  Total equity     3161.73 3161.73 
  Net debt to Equity ratio     0.27 0.09 
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NOTE NO.30 
  Earnings Per Share (EPS):         
  Basic EPS and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company 

by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 
      (Rs in Lakhs, Except EPS) 
  Particulars   Year ended 31st 

March, 2022 
Year ended 31st 

March, 2021 
  Profit attributable to equity holders (Rs. in Lakhs)   279.77 62.07 
            
  Add:/ (Less): Dividend Tax of Earlier Year     -  - 
          
  Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year               45,33,175              45,33,175  
          
  Nominal Value of Equity Shares                       10.00                     10.00  
      

  

  Earnings Per Share Basic and Diluted     6.17 1.37 

 
 
NOTE NO.31 

                

  Related Party Disclosures * 
   (Where transactions have taken place) 
I Related Party Relationships 

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Vashu Bhagnani (Director), Puja Bhagnani (Managing Director), 
Deepshikha Deshmukh (Non- Executive Director), Omkar Pathak 
(CFO), Murli Thanvi (Company Secretary & Compliance officer) 

b) Relatives of KMP: Jackky Bhagnani 
c) Other Related Parties -(Enterprises-KMP having 

significant influence/owned by major shareholders) 
Puja Entertainment (India) Limited, Pooja Constructions/ Pooja Film 
Company, Pooja Leisure & Lifestyle, Pooja Devcon Private Limited, 
PVB Developers Private Limited, Beta Properties Private Limited and 
Lilaram Bhagnani Charitable Trust. 

d) The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary -  Modern Productions FZ LLC in UAE. 

 
II Related Party Transactions *        (Rs. in Lakhs) 
  Transactions As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021 

   KMP 
Relatives 

of KMP 

Entities 
under direct 
or indirect 
control or 

substantial 
influence 

Subsidi
ary 

KMP 
Relatives of 

KMP 

Entities 
under 

direct or 
indirect 

control or 
substantial 
influence 

Subsidiary 

                    

  
Short-Term 
Borrowing 
Received 

1,060.22 -  -  -  702.39  -  -  -  

  
Short-Term 
Borrowing 
Repaid 

484.00  - -  -  454.48   - -  -  

  
Film Advance 
Received 

-  - 995.30  -  -  -  - -  

  
Film Advance 
Repaid 

- -  114.56  -  - -   - -  

  Expenses                  

  Rent paid  -    -    12.00  -    -    -    12.00  -    
 CSR Expenses - - 16.53  - - - 16.68 - 

  
Interest on 
Borrowings  

31.79  -    -    -    2.06  -    -    -    

  
Managing 
Director’s 
Remuneration  

7.20  -    -    -    9.60  -    -    -    

  
Director’s 
Sitting Fees  

0.06  -    -    -    0.19  -    -    -    

  Salary Paid  26.69  -    -    -  11.60  -    -    -  

 Particulars (Rs. in Lakhs ) 
 Outstanding Balances As at 31st March, 2022   As at 31st March, 2021 

  Liabilities               
  Short Term Borrowings            
  (i) KMP 866.72 290.50 
  Trade and Other Payables            
  KMP 29.52 3.66 

  
Entities under direct or indirect 
control or substantial influence 

194.08 1,065.65 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
*All the related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in an arm's length transactions. 
*Parties identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors. 
*No amount in respect of related parties have been written off/back or are provided for. 
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NOTE NO.31         
  As at 31st March, 2022, the Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 
          Rs.in lakhs 

  Particulars   As at 31st 
March 

2022 

As at 31st 
March 2021 

a) The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year - - 
b) Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year - - 
c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006, 

along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during the year 

- - 

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006 

- - 

e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - - 
f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 

until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for 
the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED 
Act, 2006  

- - 

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the 
information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation 
received from them on requests made by the Company. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed 
payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any 
earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payment made during the year 
or on balance brought forward from previous year. 

 
NOTE NO. 32 Trade Receivables ageing Schedule :       (Rs. in lakhs)  

As at 31st March, 2022 
Particulars Less then 6 

Months 
6 months - 

1 Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More 

Then 3 
Years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

791.98                                
-    

571.24 999.77 814.64 3177.63 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

-    -    -    -    -    -    

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(iv) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(v) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(vi) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

              
  As at 31st March, 2021 
Particulars Less then 6 

Months 
6 months - 

1 Year 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More 

Then 3 
Years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

113.44 3.00 1133.64 101.87                     
711.50  

2063.35 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(iv) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Consider Good 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(v) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Which have Significant Increase In 
Credit Risk 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

(vi) disputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit Impaired 

                                     
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                               
-    

                          
-    

                                         
-    

 
NOTE NO. 33 Trade Payable Ageing 
Schedule : 

       (Rs. in lakhs) 

 
As at 31st March, 2022 

Particulars Less then one 
year  

 1-2 Years   2-3 Years  More Than 3 
Years 

 Total  

(i) MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(ii) Others 1808.39 0.05  325.53 660.16  2794.12 
(iii) Disputed dues -MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(iv) Disputed dues- Others -    -    -    -    -    
  As at 31st March, 2021 
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Particulars Less then one 
year  

 1-2 Years   2-3 Years  More Than 3 
Years 

 Total  

(i) MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(ii) Others 5.91  203.49 11.07  1,644.39  1864.86 
(iii) Disputed dues -MSME -    -    -    -    -    
(iv) Disputed dues- Others -    -    -    -    -    

 
NOTE NO.34         
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 
Particulars     Rs. in lakhs 

    As at  
31st March 

2022 

As at  
31st March 

2021 
(i) Contingent Liabilities         
a) Guarantees given by the Company's bankers on 

behalf of the Company for the Company 
    -  -  

b) other money for which the Company is contingently liable:         
  MVAT / CST (See Note  34.1)     53.57 21.61  
(ii) Commitments         
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 

executed on capital account and not provided 
for 

    -  -  

b) Uncalled liability on shares and other 
investments partly paid 

    -  -  

c)  Other commitments     -  -  
  Total     53.57 21.61  
            
34.1  The figure of Rs 53.57 Lakhs is towards to VAT Demand for the period 2012-13 and 2013-14 raised as per the Assessment 

Orders issued by the Dy. Comm. Of Sales Tax. The same is pending before appeals as at 31st March 2022. 
The figure of Rs. 21.61 lakhs for FY 2012-13 is as per the order dated May 9, 2017 of the Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax, 
Mumbai. Thereafter, the Company had preferred an appeal before the Joint Commissioner of Sales Tax as at 31st March 2021. 

 
NOTE NO.35         
Payment to Auditors          

Particulars     Rs. in lakhs 
    Year ended 31st 

March 2022 
Year ended 31st 

March 2021 
Statutory Auditors         
 - Audit Fees     2.25 2.00  
 - For Tax Audit     - 1.25  
 - For Taxation Matters     -  -  
-For Quarterly-Limited Review     0.50  1.50  
 - For Other services - Certification, etc.     0.20  0.20  
Total     2.95  4.95  

 
NOTE NO.36         
 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activity:      (Rs. in lakhs)  
Sr. 
No. 

PARTICULARS   Year ended 31st 
March,2022 

Year ended 31st 
March,2021 

1 Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year   16.53  16.68  
2 Amount of expenditure incurred on       
  i) Construction/acquisition of any assets   -    -    
  ii) On purpose of other than (i) above   16.53  16.68  
3 Shortfall at the end of the year    -    -    
4 Total of Previous year shortfall   -    -    
5 Reason for shortfall    NA   NA  
6 Nature of CSR activities    Education and Health  
7 Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR  expenditure as 

per relevant Accounting Standard : 
  Donation paid to Lilaram Bhagnani Charitable 

Trust, a related party in relation to CSR 
expenditure  

8 Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation 

  -    -    

 
In terms of Amendment to Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021 (the CSR Rules 2021”) effective 
from 22nd January, 2021, if a company fails to spend the prescribed CSR amount during the year and such unspent amount pertains to 
any ongoing project, the company shall transfer the unspent amount to a special bank account to be opened by the company in that 
behalf for that financial year in any scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account within a period of 
30 days from the end of the relevant financial year.  the Company does not have any unspent CSR amount as on 31st March, 2022. 

 
NOTE NO.37         
  OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION :         
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 

for holding any Benami property. 
(ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 
(iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 
(iv) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 

authority. 
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(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall : 

  (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall : 
  (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
  (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(vii) The Company does not have  any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any 
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(viii) The Company has not granted Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties. 
(ix) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the 

lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant 
and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(x) The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off except the following 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the struck off company 
Nature of 

transactions 

Balance outstanding  
(Rs.in lakhs) 

Relationship 
with the struck 
off company, if 

any, to be 
disclosed 

As at March 
31, 2022 

As at March 31, 
2021 

1 Magnolia Farms Pvt Ltd 
Shares held by 

Stuck off 
Company 

- - Shareholder 

             

  
Details of other struck off entities holding equity shares in the 
Company is as below: 

  (Rs.in lakhs)   

  
Name of struck off Company   

 No. of shares 
held  

 Paid-up as at 
March 31, 
2022  

 Paid-up as at 
March 31, 
2021  

  

    

  Magnolia Farms Pvt Ltd 
                           
1,25,000  

                         
12.50  

                         
12.50  

  

 
NOTE NO.38  
KEY RATIOS :  

        

  
 

            
Sr. 
No
. 

Particulars Numerator Denominator Year ended 
31st March 
2022 

Year ended 
31st March 
2021 

 Variance 
(%) 

Remarks for variance 
more than 25% 

1 Current Ratio (In 
times) 

Current Assets Current 
Liabilities 

1.93 2.27 -15%   

2 Debt-Equity Ratio 
(In times) 

Total Debt Shareholder’
s Equity 

0.22 0.08  176%  Higher ratio on account 
of acceptance of loan for 
working capital 
requirement  

3 Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio (In 
times) 

Earnings 
available for 
debt service  

Debt Service 0.61 0.15 311%  Due to Increase in 
Earnings available for 
debt service  

4 Return on Equity 
(ROE) (%)  

Net Profits 
after taxes 

Average 
Shareholder’
s Equity 

7.44% 1.73% 330%  Due to Increase in profit 
after tax   

5 Inventory 
Turnover (In 
times)  

Cost of goods 
sold  

Average 
Inventories 

0.60 0.01 3941%  Due to increase in cost 
of goods sold 

6 Trade receivables 
Turnover (In 
times) 

Net Sales Average 
Trade 
Receivables 

0.94 0.09 911% Due to Increase in sales 
and Decrease in average 
trade receivables 

7 Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio (In 
times) 

Total 
Purchases 

Average 
Trade 
Payables 

0.94 0.17 467%  Due to Increase in 
purchases and Decrease 
in average trade 
payables  

8 Net capital 
turnover ratio (In 
times) 

Net Sales Working 
Capital 

0.64 0.09 654%  Due to Increase in sales  

9 Net profit ratio 
(%) 

Net Profit Net Sales 11.41% 20.82% -45%  Due to Increase in profit 
after tax and Increase in 
sales  

10 Return on capital 
employed (ROCE) 
(%) 

Earning before 
interest and 
taxes 

Capital 
Employed  

6.69% 1.72% 289%  Due to Increase in 
earning before interest & 
taxes and Increase in 
total debt  

Note: During the current & previous year, the company has not made any investment in the securities. Accordingly, ratio for Return on 
investment has not been presented. 
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NOTE NO.39 

Pursuant to outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) worldwide and its declaration as global pandemic, the Government of India 
declared lockdown on March 24, 2020, followed by several restrictions imposed by the Governments across the globe on the travel, 
goods movement and transportation considering public health and safety measures. The Company is closely monitoring the impact of the 
pandemic on all aspects of its business. The management has exercised due care, in concluding on significant accounting judgments and 
estimates, inter-alia, recoverability of receivables, inventory, based on the information available to date, both internal and external, while 
preparing the Company’s financial results as of and for the year ended and quarter ended 31st March, 2022. 
 
NOTE NO.40 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification/ 
disclosure. 
 
As per our report of even date.        
For Jayantilal Thakkar and Co.  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   
 Chartered Accountants       
(Firm Reg. No. 104133W)       
            
Dilip J. Thakkar  Puja Bhagnani Deepshikha D. Deshmukh 
Partner  Managing Director   Director  
Membership No.005369  DIN: 00044593   DIN: 02146210  
 
 
Place: Mumbai Omkar Pathak Murli M. Thanvi 

Date: 30th May, 2022 Chief Financial officer  Company Secretary  
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